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Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Ltd.
CIN: U93090MH2016SGC285 193
Office: Loknete Panditrao Khaire Panchavati Divisional Office, 4th Floor,
Makhmalabad Naka, Panchavati, Nashik - 422003.
E-mail: cs@nashiksmartcity.in, Tel: 0253-25L8833 / 25L8233

No: NMSCDCL/ 135 t2019
Date: 2-81 oB 12019

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that 3'd Annual General Meeting of Nashik Municipal
Smart City Development Corporation Limited will be held on Friday, 2oth
September, 2OL9 at 04.00 p.m. at Meeting Hall, Municipal Commissioner
Office, Nashik Municipal Corporation, Rajiv Gandhi Bhavan, Sharanpur Road,
Nashik- 422002, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1) To consider and adopt audited financial statement of the company for
the financial year ended 31't March 2019, the reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditor's thereon.

2) To appoint a Director in place of Smt. Ranjana Bhanse, who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

3) To appoint a Director in place of Smt. Renu Satija, who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

4) To ratify the appointment of Statutory Auditor.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of section L39, L4L, L42
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 20L3, if any, an
appointment of M/s. C. R. Sagdeo & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Reg. No. 108959W) as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for 5
consecutive years i.e. to hold office till the conclusion of 7th Annual
General Meeting of the Company to audit the financial accounts of the
company for the financial years 2018-19 to 2022-23 as per scope
mentioned in Request For Proposal at remuneration of Rs. 75,O00/-
(Rupees Seventy-Five Thousand Only) exclusive of GST per annum, be
and is hereby ratified."
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5) TO REGULARTSE APPOTNTMENT OF SHRr. RADHAKRTSHNA
GAME AS NOMINEE DIRECTOR:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section L52(2) of the Companies Act,
20L3 read with Article L2.L of the Articles of Association of the
Company and Urban Development Department, Government Decision
No. Smart C/ ANS.2016/ Ward No.58/ Navi-23 dated 18th June 2Ot6,
Shri. Radhakrishna Game, IAS, Commissioner, Nashik Municipal
Corporation - the representative of Nashik Municipal Corporation be

and is hereby regularized and appointed as Nominee Director of the
Company."

6) TO REGULARISE APPOTNTMENT OF SHR[. VISHWAS NANGRE
PATIL AS NOMINEE DIRECTOR:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section L52(2) of the Companies Act,
2OL3 read with Article t2.L of the Articles of Association of the
Company and Urban Development Department, Government Decision
No. Smart C/ ANS.2016/ Ward No.58/ Navi-23 dated l8th June 2Ot6,
Shri. Vishwas Nangre Patil, IPS, Police Commissioner, Nashik - the
representative of State Government be and is hereby regularized and

appointed as Nominee Director of the Company."

7) TO REGULARISE APPOINTMENT OF SHRI. SURAJ MANDHARE AS
NOMINEE DIRECTOR:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section t52(2) of the Companies Act,
20t3 read with Article tz.L of the Articles of Association of the
Company and Urban Development Department, Government Decision
No. Smart C/ ANS.2016/ Ward No.58/ Navi-23 dated 18th June 20L6,
Shri. Suraj Mandhare, IAS, District Collector, Nashik - the
representative of State Government be and is hereby regularized and
appointed as Nominee Director of the Company."
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8) TO REGULARTSE APPOINTMENT OF SHRI. SATISH SONAWITNE
AS NOMINEE DIRECTOR:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section L52(2) of the Companies Act,
20L3 read with Article Lz.L of the Articles of Association of the
Company and Urban Development Department, Government Decision
No. Smart C/ ANS.2016/ Ward No.58/ Navi-23 dated 18th June 2Ot6,
Shri. Satish Sonawane, Leader of House, Nashik Municipal Corporation
- the representative of Nashik Municipal Corporation be and is hereby
regularized and appointed as Nominee Director of the Company. "

APPOINTMENT OF SHRI. UDDHAV NIMSE AS NOMINEE
DIRECTOR:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section L52(2) of the Companies Act,
20L3 read with Article L2.L of the Articles of Association of the
Company and Urban Development Department, Government Decision
No. Smart C/ ANS.2016/ Ward No.58/ Navi-23 dated 18th June 2Ot6,
Shri. Uddhav Nimse, Chairman, Standing Committee, Nashik Municipal
Corporation - the representative of Nashik Municipal Corporation be
and is hereby appointed as Nominee Director of the Company."

10) APPOINTMENT OF DR. PRASHANT NARNAWARE AS NOMINEE
DIRECTOR:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

'RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section L52(2) of the Companies Act,
2Ot3 read with Article LZ.L of the Articles of Association of the
Company and Urban Development Department, Government Decision
No. Smart C/ ANS.20L6/ Ward No.58/ Navi-23 dated l8th June 20L6,
Dr. Prashant Narnaware, IAS, loint Managing Director, CIDCO - the
representative of State Government be and is hereby appointed as
Nominee Director of the Company."

e)
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Note(s):

1. The explanatory statement pursuant to
20L3, relating to special business to
annexed.

section 102 of the Companies Act,
be transacted at the Meeting is

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint
a proxy to attend and on poll, to vote instead of himself and the Proxy
need not be a Member of the company.

Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received in the enclosed Proxy
Form at the Registered Office of the Company not less than forty-eight
hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Ltd.

Date:28l08l2OL9
Place: Nashik

2.

3.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE
sEcTroN 1o2 oF THE COMPANTES ACT, 2013.

Item Nos. 5 to 8:

Pursuant to Urban Development Department, Government Decision No. Smart C/
ANS.2016/ Ward No.58/ Navi-23 dated l8th June 20t6 read with Article L2.L of
the Articles of Association of the Company: -

a) The Board at its meeting held on 20th December, 2018 confirmed and
appointed Shri. Radhakrishna Game, IAS, Commissioner, Nashik Municipal
Corporation - the representative of Nashik Municipal Corporation, as an
Additional Director w.e.f. 6th December, 2018.

b) The Board at its meeting held on 16th April, 2019 confirmed and appointed
Shri. Vishwas Nangre Patil, IPS, Police Commissioner, Nashik the
representative of State Government, as an Additional Director w.e.f. 16th

April, 2OL9 and Shri. Suraj Mandhare, IAS, District Collector, Nashik as an
Additional Director w.e.f. lBth April, 20L9.

c) The Board at its meeting held on 18th July, 2Ot9 confirmed and appointed
Shri. Satish Sonawane, Leader of House, Nashik Municipal Corporation -
the representative of Nashik Municipal Corporation, as an Additional
Director w.e.f. lBth July, 20L9.

The Company has received consent from all directors in writing to act as director
in Form DIR-2 and intimation in Form DIR-B pursuant to Rule B of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 20L4.

Further as per section L52(2) of the Companies Act, 20t3, every director shall
be appointed by the company in general meeting. Accordingly, the board
recommends the resolution at Item Nos. from 4 to 7, in relation to regularization
of Directors as Nominee Directors, for the approval by the shareholders of the
Company as ordinary resolutions.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
relatives other than those mentioned in the respective resolutions and their
relatives are in any way concerned or interested in the resolutions at Item Nos.
4 lo 7 of this Notice.
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Item Nos.9:

Pursuant to Urban Development Department, Government Decision No. Smart C/
ANS.2016/ Ward No.58/ Navi-23 dated lBth June 20L6 read with Article 12.t of
the Articles of Association of the Company, appointment of Shri. Uddhav Nimse/
Chairman, Standing Committee, Nashik Munlcipal Corporation - the
representative of Nashik Municipal Corporation, as Nominee Director in place of
Smt. Himgauri Aher, proposed in ensuing Board meeting.

The Company has received consent in writing to act as director in Form DIR-2
and intimation in Form DIR-B pursuant to Rule B of the Companies (Appointment
and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 20L4.

Further as per section L52(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, every director shall
be appointed by the company in general meeting. Accordingly, pursuant to
Urban Development Department, Government Decision No. Smart C/ ANS.2OL6/
Ward No.58/ Navi-23 dated lBth June 2016 read with Article L2.7 of the Articles
of Association of the Company, lt is proposed - appointment of Shri. Uddhav
Nimse, Chairman, Standing Committee, Nashik Municipal Corporation, as

Nominee Director, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company as

ordinary resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
relatives other than Shri. Uddhav Nimse and relatives are in any way concerned
or interested in the resolution at Item No. B of this Notice.

Item Nos. 1O:

Pursuant to Urban Development Department, Government Decision No. Smart C/
ANS.2016/ Ward No.58/ Navi-23 dated l8th June 20t6 read with Article L2.L of
the Articles of Association of the Company read with Government Decision-AEO-
1019/Pra.Kra.1LO/2019/Daha, dated 22/07120L9, appointment of Dr. Prashant
Narnaware, IAS, Joint Managing Director, CIDCO - the representative of State
Government, as Nominee Director in place of Smt. Prajakta Lavangare-Verma,
proposed in ensuing Board meeting.

The Company has received consent in writing to act as director in Form DIR-2
and intimation in Form DIR-B pursuant to Rule B of the Companies (Appointment
and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 20L4.
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Further as per section L52(2) of the Companies Act, 20L3, every director shall
be appointed by the company in general meeting. Accordingly, pursuant to
Urban Development Department, Government Decision No. Smart C/ ANS.20L6/
Ward No.58/ Navi-23 dated 18th June 20L6 read with Article 12.t of the Articles
of Association of the Company, it is proposed - appointment of Dr. Prashant
Narnaware, IAS, Joint Managing Director, CIDCO, as Nominee Director, for the
approval by the shareholders of the Company as ordinary resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
relatives other than Dr. Prashant Narnaware and relatives are in any way
concerned or interested in the resolution at Item No. B of this Notice.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Ltd.

Date: L6 loel2o,.g
Place: Nashik
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Form No. MGT-11 
Proxy form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

CIN U93090MH2016SGC285193 

Name of Company NASHIK MUNICIPAL SMART CITY DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION LIMITED 

Registered office C\O. NASHIK MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, 

PURANDARE COLONY, SHARANPUR, SHRI. RAJIV 
GANDHI BHAVAN, NASHIK – 422002. 

 

Name of Member(s)  

Registered Address  

E-mail Id  

Folio No / Client Id  

DP ID  

 
 

I/We, being the member (s) of …………. shares of the above-named 

company, hereby appoint  
 
1.  

NAME  

Address  

E-mail Id  

Signature  

 

       OR failing him,  

2.  
NAME  

Address  

E-mail Id  

Signature  
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       OR failing him, 

3.  
NAME  

Address  

E-mail Id  

Signature  

 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our 

behalf at the First Annual general meeting of the company, to be held on the 

Friday, 20th September, 2019 at 04.00 p.m. At Meeting Hall, Municipal 

Commissioner Office, Nashik Municipal Corporation, Rajiv Gandhi Bhavan, 

Sharanpur Road, Nashik– 422002 and at any adjournment thereof in respect 

of such resolutions as are indicated below:  

 

Resolution No.  

 

1) To consider and adopt audited financial statement of the company for 

the financial year ended 31st March 2019, the reports of the Board of 

Directors and Auditor’s thereon. 

2) To appoint a Director in place of Smt. Ranjana Bhanse, who retires by 

rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 

3) To appoint a Director in place of Smt. Renu Satija, who retires by 

rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 

4) To ratify the appointment of Statutory Auditor . 

5) To regularise appointment of Shri. Radhakrishna Game as Nominee 

Director. 

6) To regularise appointment of Shri. Vishwas Nangre Patil as Nominee 

Director. 

7) To regularise appointment of Shri. Suraj Mandhare as Nominee 

Director. 

8) To regularise appointment of Shri. Satish Sonawane as Nominee 

Director. 

9) Appointment of Shri. Uddhav Nimse as Nominee Director. 

10) Appointment of Dr. Prashant Narnaware as Nominee Director. 
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Signed this _____ day of _________ 2018  

 

    

 
Signature of shareholder  

 

 
     

Signature of Proxy holder(s)  
 

 

 
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and 
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours 

before the commencement of the Meeting.  
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Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Limited 
CIN: U93090MH2016SGC285193 
Office: Loknete Panditrao Khaire Panchavati Divisional Office, 4th Floor, 
Makhmalabad Naka, Panchavati, Nashik – 422003.  
E-mail: cs@nashiksmartcity.in, Tel: 0253-2518833 / 2518233 

 
BOARD’S REPORT 

 
To,  
The Members of 
Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Ltd. 
 
Your Directors’ have pleasure in presenting their Third Annual Report on the 
business and operations of the company and the accounts for the financial year 
ended on 31st March 2019. 
 
A) Extract of the Annual Return: - 
 
Extract of Annual Return as provided under sub-section (3) of the section 92 is 
attached in Form MGT-9 with report enclosed as Annexure-I 
 
B) Number of Meetings of the Board: - 
 
The details board meetings held during Financial Year 2018-19 as per below: - 
 

Meeting 
Sr. No. 

Date of Board Meeting Number of Directors attended 
meeting 

7   11/04/2018 8 
8 20/07/2018 10 
9 28/09/2018 12 
10 20/12/2018 13 

 
C) Directors’ Responsibility Statement: -   
 
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
with respect to the Directors Responsibility Statement, the Board of Directors of the 
company hereby state that: -  
 In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards 

had been followed along with proper explanation relating to the material 
departures. 

 The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently 
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the 
financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period. 

 The directors had taken the proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities. 

 The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a ‘Going Concern Basis’.    
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 The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and 
operating effectively. 

 
C(a) Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under sub-section 
(12) of section 143 other than those which are reportable to the Central 
Government: -  
 
No such frauds reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act 2013. 
 
D) A statement on declaration given by independent directors under sub-
section (6) of section 149: -  
 
The company has received declaration from independent directors under section 
149(6) of the Companies Act 2013. 
 
E) In case of a company covered under sub- section (1) of section 178, 
company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including 
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of 
a director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 178: 
-  
Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable.  
 
F) Explanations or comments by the Board on every qualification, 
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made- 
 
(i) by the auditor in his report: -  
Explanation or comment by the Board on qualification, reservation or adverse 
remark or disclaimer as the case may be made by the auditor in his audit report. 
 

 
(ii) by the company secretary in practice in his secretarial audit report: -  
This clause is not applicable to the company. 
 
G) Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186: - 
 
Your Company has not entered in to any transaction viz. loan, guarantees or 
investments to any other company or person as specified under section 186 
therefore other requirements under this section are not applicable to the company. 
 
H) Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to 
in Sub-section (1) of section 188 in prescribed Form AOC - 2:  
 
The company has not entered into contracts or arrangements with related parties 
referred to in Sub-section (1) of section 188- Form AOC – 2 enclosed as Annexure-
II.   

Audit Point Comment 
Annexure-
A-Clause 

vii (b) 

According to the information and explanations given 
to us and as per records of the company, there 
were outstanding statutory dues of Provident Fund 
of Rs.11250/- (Employer & Employee Contribution) 
as on 31th March 2019 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable. 

The Payment of 
outstanding 
statutory dues of 
Provident Fund is 
under process.  
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I) The state of the company’s affairs: - About completed / on-going / 
proposed / upcoming projects: 
 

COMPLETED PROJECS DURING THE YEAR 
 
1. Renovation of Mahakavi Kalidas Kalamandir: 
 
Project Funding: Smart City Fund  
Project Cost: INR 9.96 Cr   
 
Renovation of a 942 seated fully air-conditioned Kalidas Kala Mandir, a premier 
venue for artists of theater plays, dramas and other artistic activities is located 
in the center of city. Various components of the project included: carrying out 
overall civil work, refurbish electrical, acoustical, fire management and air-
conditioning work. Promoting cultural and artistic activities Providing platform for 
budding artists Renovated premier venue for theatre plays, drama and other 
artistic pursuits. 
 
2. Renovation of Mahatma Phule Kaladalan: 
 
Project Funding: Smart City Fund  
Project cost: INR 3.70 Cr  
 
Mahatma Phule Kaladalan, with an area of 1800 square meters is located in the 
center of city and exhibits educational and cultural resources of the city through 
art gallery. Under the project, gallery was designed and renovated for optimal 
preservation and display of the extensive and exclusive art works. 
 
3. Renovation of Nehru Garden: 
 
Project Funding: Smart City Fund  
Project Cost: INR 1.32 Cr  
 
Nehru Garden is a pleasing space for everyone for interaction, play games and 
sports and exercise. Renovation of the Nehru Garden has improved the 
functionality of the park, even as the park is located in a highly dense area. 
Increase green space in the city forum for citizen engagement improvement in 
quality of life. 
 
4. Electric Crematorium: 
 
Project Funding: Smart City Fund  
Project Cost: INR 2.33 Cr 
 
The construction of the crematorium was intended to reduce pollution, which is 
caused due to burning of wood. It is the environment friendly way for cremation 
of deceased person. 
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5. Public Bike Sharing 
 
Project Funding: PPP  
Project Cost: INR 28.23 Cr 
 
The scheme is foreseen to act as a feeder service in areas with high auto 
ridership by providing last mile connectivity to the residents who commute daily 
for work, education and recreational activities. Under this initiative 100 bicycle 
stands with GPS enabled 1000 bicycles are being installed at different locations. 
Promote eco-friendly mode of transportation, Reduce traffic congestion, Long 
term positive health outcomes. 
 

ONGOING PROJECS 
 
1. Pilot Smart Road: 
 
Project Funding: Smart City Fund 
Project Cost: INR 21.72 Cr 
 
The pilot Smart Road stretch is from Trimbak Naka to Ashok Stambh, measuring 
about 1.1 km. This project is about transforming chaotic road image to a smart 
road. Proposed features of the smart road are: uniform standard carriage way 
width from one junction to another, properly designed footpaths, bicycle lane, 
road intersection development, infrastructure utility ducts below footpaths, road 
marking, proper storm water drainage and landscaping to increase overall 
aesthetics of the road. 
  
2. Solar Panel Rooftop Installation: 
 
Project Funding: PPP 
Project Cost: INR 5 Cr 
 
Under this project, solar panel would be installed on the rooftop of 16 
government buildings. Scope of work includes preparation of Green & Blue 
Environment plan, reduction in conventional energy demand by resorting to 
renewable energy source like Solar Panel Installation. Further, the capacity of 
project is envisaged to be 1 MW and once fully operational it will benefit NMC by 
resulting in saving approximately INR 1 Crore every year. 
 
3. Smart Parking: 
 
Project Funding: PPP  
Project Cost: INR 79.54 Cr 
 
The ICT based parking management has been proposed for 28 On-street, and 5 
Off-Street Public parking spaces. The ICT system will assist in providing real 
time information about vacant parking slots through city app. It will also have 
multiple payment options like smart card, tokens, and e-payment. Modernization 
of the parking spaces is proposed by providing Sensors and cameras for data 
collection on parking lot capacity and availability. 
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4. Smart City Operations Centre & CCTV Project- Surakshit Nashik 
 

Project Funding: Convergence and SCF 
Project Cost: INR 159.15 Cr  
 
The project is aimed to streamline municipal operations and enforce surveillance 
and security. Main features of the project include: 
- Smart city elements like Wi-Fi, Kiosk, Environmental Sensor, Variable 

Message Display, and Emergency Call Box (SOS) 
- Creation of Smart City Operation Center and Citizen Digital Experience Centre 
- Installation of CCTV cameras for surveillance 

 
UPCOMING PROJECTS - TENDERING / DPR STAGE 

 
1. Water Infrastructure in ABD and surrounding area 
 

Project Funding: Smart City Fund 
Project Cost: INR 108.38 Cr 
 
This proposed project will effectively improve the Water Storage Capacities by 
constructing the new MBR’s (Master Balancing Reservoir’s) and ESR’s (Elevated 
Storage Revisor’s) its respective Water Transmission Networks and also by 
providing WPS (Water Pumping Station) the water supply systems will be 
enhanced in ABD areas of Nashik City by supervising and commissioning it for 
24*7 time period. 
 
In addition to this, the Upgradation & Augmentation of Bara Bunglow WTP 
(Water Treatment Plant) and also the Improvents to Panchavati WTP (Water 
Treatment Plant) Including Trial, Testing and Commissioning is being proposed 
in the respective project. 
 
2. Smart Metering and SCADA 

 

Project Funding: Smart City Fund 
Project Cost: INR 282 Cr  
 
Installation of SCADA system will help the NMC in conducting bulk water audit 
from source till ESR level. It will help automation of entire water supply system 
at intake well, water treatment plants, water levels in ESRs. The project also 
includes installation of AMR meters, which will reduce Non-Revenue Water as the 
readings will be taken directly to the server without manpower intervention. 
 
3. Greenfield Development Town Planning Scheme 

 

Project Funding: Smart City Fund 
Project Cost: INR 262.07 Cr 
 
The area for Greenfield Development is proposed to be developed through ’Town 
Planning Scheme’ mechanism as per the provisions under MRTP Act 1966, 
covering Nashik and Makhmalabad Shivar. 
 
The area proposed for Greenfield development covers about 754 acres, with 560 
Acres and 194 acres located in Nashik and Makhmalabad Shivar respectively.  
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4. Multi-level Car Parking 
 
Project Funding: PPP 
Project Cost: INR 47.12 Cr 
 
Due to high demand of off-street parking in the old city area due to religious 
places, two locations for multi-level car parking have been identified to cater to 
the growing demand. Identified parking locations are at Yashwant Mandai and 
Multi-level car parking at near Sita Gumpha. 
 
5. Skill Development Centre 
 

  Project Funding: Smart City Funds 
 Project Cost: INR 18.06 Cr 

 
Under this project Skill Development Centre would be established and would 
serve as a fulcrum between academia and industry. The city of Nashik, being a 
part of economically vibrant Mumbai-Pune-Nashik Golden Triangle, offers 
prospective investors an excellent investment opportunity. With an operational 
skill development center in place, a skilled and competitive work force would be 
a natural attraction for employers. 

 
PROJECTS AT WORK ORDER STAGE 

 
1. River Front Development (Project Goda) 

 
Project Funding: Smart City Fund 
Project Cost: INR 117.91Cr  
 
This is a marquee project under the Nashik Smart city initiative. The master 
planning of the area provides an excellent opportunity for rejuvenation of the 
area and its picturesque backdrop with Godavari river front. Aim is to promote 
heritage and cultural tourism, which is turn is expected to boost local economy. 
The main features of the project include: 
- Beautification through cobble stone paving, stone benches, cycle track, sign 

board, tree plantation, heritage walks, jetty and floating fountain 
- sewerage and water infrastructure component 
- River desilting and cleaning 
- Automated Mechanical Gate 

 
2. Integrated Water & Road Network Development Project in ABD Area 
 
Project Funding: Smart City Funds 
Project Cost: INR 241.8 Cr 
 
This project follows multi-pronged approach to upgrade overall civil 
infrastructure of the city and entails improvement of selected existing roads in 
ABD area to Smart Roads in new section consisting of footpath, utility conduits, 
water lines, storm water drains, road markings, street light, street furniture, 
traffic signage, street landscaping works, junction Improvement and other 
miscellaneous works. 
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3. Renovation of Pandit Paluskar Auditorium 
 
Project Funding: Smart City Fund 
Project Cost: INR 2.39 Cr 
 
Renovation of Pandit Paluskar auditorium is expected to improve functional and 
aesthetic experience of the people of Nashik. The main features of the project 
includes: 
- Improve the functionality wherever possible and upgrade the stage and 

operational facilities 
- Renovate the front elevation and Improve the front garden 
- Renovate the entrance court to the premises 

 
4. Street Lights 

 
Project Funding: PPP 
Project Cost: INR 171 Cr 
 
The project would overhaul traditional system of street lightning in a big way by 
adopting smart IT enabled street lighting system. Following would be the main 
features: 
- Intelligent IT innovations to transportation, civic utilities, public safety without 

adding significantly more physical infrastructure. 
- Real-time data communications with low latency to improve safety and 

security 
- Installing smart LED street lights with functional features like: Remote 

dimming control, Remote On-Off option, Timer, GPS Map representation 
 
J) the amounts, if any, which it proposes to carry to any reserves: - NIL 
 
K) Dividend: - 
 
The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend for the period under 
review. 
 
L) Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting financial position of 
company which have occurred between end of the financial year to which 
the financial statements relate and date of report: -  
 
There were no material changes occurred between end of the financial year to which 
the financial statements relate and date of report which affected the financial 
position of the company.  
 
M) The conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo, in such manner as may be prescribed: - 
 
Conservation of energy and Technology absorption- The Company’s operations 
being essentially of overall development of Nashik City. As per Section 134(3) (m) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 
wherever possible Company is taking initiative to conserve energy and absorb 
technology. 
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Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo- The Company has the following foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo: 
 
Foreign Exchange Earnings: Rs. Nil 
Foreign Exchange Outgo: Rs. Nil 
 
N) A Statement indicating development and implementation of a risk 
management policy including identification therein of elements of risk, if 
any, which in opinion of Board may threaten an existence of the company: - 
 
The company is identifying the risk areas and factors affecting business of company.  
 
O) The details about policy developed and implemented by company on 
Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives taken during the year: - 
 
Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 is Not Applicable consequently this clause is 
Not Applicable to the Company.  
 
P) In case of a listed company and every other public company having a 
paid-up share capital of twenty-five crore rupees or more, a statement 
indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation has been made by 
the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and individual 
directors: - 
 
This clause is Not Applicable to the Company being an unlisted public limited 
company and paid-up share capital is of rupees five lakh only.   
 
Q) Other matters as per Rule 8 (5) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014: -  
 
(i) The financial summary or highlights: -  
 
A Summary of the Company’s Financial Performance in 2018-19: - 
 
Following is the comparative figures of financial items to explain the current financial 
condition of the company.  
 
Particulars  Year Ended on 

31st March 2019  
(Figures in Rs) 

Year Ended on 
31st March 2018  
(Figures in Rs) 

Revenue from Operations NIL NIL 
Other Income 5,36,32,015 2,15,63,720 
Total Revenue 5,36,32,015 2,15,63,720 
Total Expenses 4,98,92,903 2,11,89,739 
Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax 37,39,112 3,73,981 
Tax Expenses: 
Current Tax 
Deferred Tax  

 
11,53,010 

(1, 92,023) 

 
1,25,780 
(24,590) 

Net Profit/(Loss) after tax 27,78,125 2,72,791 
 
(ii) The change in the nature of business, if any: - 
 
 There is no change in the nature of business of the company. 
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(iii) The details of directors or key managerial personnel who were 
appointed or have resigned during the year;  
 
Details of Appointment of Directors: - 
 
During the year pursuant to Government Decision No. Smart C/ ANS.2016/ Ward 
No.58/ Navi-23 dated 18th June, 2016, following directors were appointed on the 
Board of the Company. 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director Date of 
Appointment 

1 Shri. Bhaskarrao Mundhe 11/04/2018 
2 Shri. Tushar Pagar 02/11/2018* 
3 Shri. Radhakrishna Game 06/12/2018 
4 Shri. Shahu Khaire 12/04/2018 
5 Shri. Gurumeetsingh Bagga 12/04/2018 

 
*Shri. Tushar Pagar (DIN: 07121656) re-appointed as Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 years or till 
existence of company whichever is earlier with effect from 2nd November 2018 
and whose office shall not be liable to retire by rotation vide special resolution 
passed in 2nd Annual General Meeting dated 28th September, 2018. 
 
Details of Resignation: - 
 
During the year, there was no Resignation of Director in the company. However, 
pursuant to Government Decision No. Smart C/ ANS.2016/ Ward No.58/ Navi-23 
dated 18th June, 2016, following directors were ceased to be director of NMSCDCL. 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director Date of Cessation 

1 Shri. Tukaram Mundhe 22/11/2018 
2 Shri. Ajay Boraste  24/12/2018* 
3 Smt. Himgauri Aher 28/02/2019 
4 Smt. Prajakta Verma-Lavangare 01/03/2019 
5 Shri. Ravinderkumar Singal  02/03/2019 
 Shri. Radhakrishnan B. 12/03/2019 

 
*As per section 167(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, office of director became 
vacant under section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Details of Appointment of Key Managerial Personnel: - 
 
During the year, no Key Managerial Personnel were appointed or ceased in the 
Company. However, Shri. Baburao Nirmal, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Shri. 
Mahendra Shinde, Company Secretary (CS) was appointed for term of one year 
on contract basis respectively and the term of one year of CFO and CS ended on 
30/06/2018 and the extension of term of appointment of CFO and CS were given 
for further 11 months on contract basis. 
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(iv) The names of companies which have become or ceased to be its 
Subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies during the year: -  
 

No company has become or ceased to be subsidiary, Joint venture or associate of 
the company during the year.  
 
(v) The company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year 
hence Chapter V is not applicable to the Company. 
 

Particulars Amount in Rs. 
(a) accepted during the year N.A. 
(b) remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the 
end of the year 

N.A. 

(c) whether there has been any default in 
repayment of deposits or payment of interest 
thereon during the year 

N.A. 

 

 
(vi) The details of deposits which are not in compliance with the 
requirements of Chapter V of the Act: -  
 
The company has not accepted any deposits which are not in compliance with the 
requirements of Chapter V of the Act during the year. 
 
(vii) The details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators 
or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s 
operations in future: - 
 
No significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future during the 
year. 
 
(viii) The details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with 
reference to the Financial Statements: - 
 
The Company is required to follow the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, under 
sections 134 and 143 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, with respect to 
Internal Financial Controls (IFCs) by adopting an adequately designed and 
effectively operating internal controls mechanism over financial reporting framework 
and an enterprise risk management policy. The Company followed the several 
guidelines on procurement, GFR etc. as applicable under various governmental 
regulations that had implicit controls built in. 
 
(ix) a disclosure, as to whether maintenance of cost records as specified by 
the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, is required by the Company and accordingly such 
accounts and records are made and maintained: - 
 
This clause is Not Applicable to the Company. 
 
  



x) a statement that the company has complied with provisions relating to
the constitution of Interna! Complaints Committee under the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and Disclosure thereunder: -

The company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressa!) Act, 2013. No complaint / case has been
filed /pending with the Company during the year.

R) a disclosure under section 177(8) regarding the composition of an Audit
Committee:

Audit Committee of the Company has been constituted as per Section L77 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with Articles of Association of the Company.
The composition, functions, powers and duties of the Audit Committee of the
Company was adopted at Board's meeting held on 28th December, 20t7.

Composition:
Commissioner NMC as Director who shall be Chairman of the Committee and Two
Independent Directors as Members of the Committee.

The details meetings held during Financial Year 2018-19 as per below: -

Meeting
Sr. No.

Date of Committee
Meetino

Number of Directors
attended meetinq

1 2L/09/20L8 3
2 20/72/20t8 3

S) Appointment of Auditor: -

M/s. C. R. Sagdeo & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No. 108959W)
empaneled on Comptroller Auditor General of India appointed as statutory
auditor of the company for 5 consecutive years i.e. to hold office till the
conclusion of 7th Annual General Meeting of the Company to audit the financial
accounts of the company for the financial years 2018-19 to 2022-23.

T) The company has complied the applicable Secretarial Standards.

Acknowledgement: -

Your directors wish to place on record their appreciation and acknowledge with the
gratitude, the support and co-operation extended to the company by the
stakeholders, citizens, employees at all levels, bankers, financia! Institutions, Central
and State Government.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Nashik Municipal Smaft City Development Corporation Ltd.

Mr. Sitaram Kunte
Chairman, DIN-O2670899
Date: 2OlO9l20l9 It c,Fa\
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ANNEXURE- I 
 

FORM NO. MGT 9 
 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2019 
 

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the 

Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 
 

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

 

1.  CIN U93090MH2016SGC285193 

2.  Registration Date 26/08/2016 

3.  Name of the 

Company 

Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation 

Limited 

4.  Category/Sub-
category of the 

Company 

Company limited by Shares 

5.  Address of the 

Registered office & 
contact details 

Nashik Municipal Corporation, Rajiv Gandhi Bhavan, 

Purandare Colony, Sharanpur, Nashik – 422002, 
Maharashtra.  

Tel: 0253-2518833 / 2518233 
Email: cs@nashiksmartcity.in 

6.  Whether listed 
Company 

No 

7.  Name, Address & 
contact details of the 

Registrar & Transfer 
Agent, if any. 

N.A. 

 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business 
activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be 
stated) 

 

S. 

No. 

Name and Description of 

main products / services 

NIC Code of 

the 
Product/service 

 

 

% to total turnover of the 

company 

1 SPV 75133 100% 

 
 

III.   PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES - 

 
 

S. N0 

NAME AND 

ADDRESS OF 

THE COMPANY 

CIN/GLN 

HOLDING/ 

SUBSIDIARY / 

ASSOCIATE 

% of 

shares 

held 

Applicable 

Section 

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 
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VI. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage 

of Total Equity): - 
 
A) Category-wise Share Holding 

 

Category of 

Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning 

of the year  

No. of Shares held at the end of the 

year  

% 

Chang
e 

during 

the 
year       

  Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares 

A. Promoters                  

(1) Indian          

a) Individual/ 

HUF 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Central Govt 
- - - - - - - - - 

c) State Govt(s) - 25000 25000 50% - 25000 25000 50% - 

d) Bodies Corp. 

(Nashik 
Municipal 
Corporation & 

Its Authorized 
Representative) 

- 25000 25000 50% - 25000 25000 50% - 

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

f) Any other - - - - - - - - - 

Total 

shareholding of 

Promoter (A) 

-- 50000 50000 100% - 50000 50000 100% -- 

B. Public 
Shareholding 

- - - - - - - - - 

1. Institutions 
- - - - - - - - - 

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - - 

b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - - 

d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - - 

e) Venture 
Capital Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

f) Insurance 
Companies 

- - - - - - - - - 

g) FIIs - - - - - - - - - 

 h) Foreign 
Venture Capital 
Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

i) Others 
(specify) 

- - - - - - - - - 
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Sub-total 
(B)(1):- 

- - - - - - - - - 

  - - - - - - - - - 

2. Non-
Institutions 

- - - - - - - - - 

a) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - - 

i) Indian - - - - - - - - - 

ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - - 

b) Individuals - - - - - - - - - 

i) Individual 

shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital 

upto Rs. 1 lakh 

- - - - - - - - - 

ii) Individual 

shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 

excess of Rs 1 
lakh 

- - - - - - - - - 

c) Others 
(specify) 

- - - - - - - - - 

Non Resident 
Indians 

- - - - - - - - - 

Overseas 
Corporate 

Bodies 

- - - - - - - - - 

Foreign 
Nationals 

- - - - - - - - - 

Clearing 
Members 

- - - - - - - - - 

Trusts - - - - - - - - - 

Foreign Bodies - 
D R 

- - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total 
(B)(2):- 

- - - - - - - - - 

Total Public 

Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ 
(B)(2) 

- - - - - - - - - 

C. Shares held 

by Custodian 
for GDRs & 
ADRs 

- - - - - - - - - 

Grand Total 

(A+B+C) 

-- 50000 50000 100

% 

- 50000 50000 100

% 

-- 
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B) Shareholding of Promoter: -  

 
 
 

SN 
  

Shareholder’s 

Name 
  

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

Shareholding at the end of the 
year 

% 
change in 
sharehold

ing 
during 

the year 

No. of 

Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 

the 
company 

% of 

Shares 

Pledged / 

encumber

ed to total 

shares 

No. of 

Shares 

% of 

total 

Shares 

of the 

company 

%of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbere

d to total 

shares 

1  Nashik 
Municipal 

Corporation * 

25000 50% - 25000 50% - - 

2  State 

Government of 
Maharashtra  

 

25000 50% - 25000 50% - - 

 Total 50000 100% - 50000 100%   

*Includes six shareholders as representative on behalf of Nashik Municipal Corporation. 

 
C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding: -  

S 
No 

Shareholding of 
each Promoter 

Shareholding at 
the beginning of 

the year 

Increase/Decrease in 
share holding 

Date of 
Chang

e 

Cumulative 
Shareholding 

during the year  

No. of 
Share 

% of total 
shares of 

the 

company 

No. of 
Shares 

Decrea
sed 

No. of 
Shares 

Increa
sed 

Reason  No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

Company 

1  Nashik 
Municipal 

Corporation * 

25000 50% 
- 

- - 
- 

25000 50% 

2  State 
Government of 

Maharashtra  
 

25000 50% 
- 

- - 

 

- 
25000 50% 

  Total Share holding at the end of year as on 
31/03/2019 

50000 100% 

*Includes six shareholders as representative on behalf of Nashik Municipal Corporation. 
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D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: - NOT APPLICABLE 

       (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs) 

SN For Each of the Top 10 

Shareholders 

Shareholding at the 

beginning 
of the year 

Cumulative 

Shareholding 
during the 

year 

No. of 
shares 

% of 
total 
shares of 

the 
company 

No. of 
shares 

% of 
total 
shares of 

the 
company 

 At the beginning of the year - - - - 
 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the year 

specifying the reasons for increase 
/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

- - - - 

 At the end of the year - - - - 
 

E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: - 
 

S 
No 

Shareholdi
ng of each 
Directors 

and each 
Key 

Managerial 

Personnel 

Share Holding at 
the beginning of 

the year 

Increase/Decrease in share 
holding 

Date of 
Chang

e 

Cumulative 
Shareholding 

during the year 

No. of 

Share 

% of 

total 

shares of 

the 

company 

No. of 

Shares 

Decrease 

No. of 

Shares 

Increase 

Reason No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

Company 

1 Shri. R. V. 
Game 

24995 49.99% - - - - 24995 49.99% 

2 Smt. 
Ranjana 
Bhanse 

1 0.002% - - - - 1 0.002% 

3 Smt. 
Himgauri 

Aher 

1 0.002% - - - - 1 0.002% 

4 Shri. 
Dinkar 

Patil 

1 0.002% - - - - 1 0.002% 

5 Shri. Ajay 

Boraste 

1 0.002% - - - - 1 0.002% 

  Total Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel 

24999 49.998% 

 
Note: Directors are holding shares on behalf of Nashik Municipal Corporation.  
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V) INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest 
outstanding/accrued but not due for payment: - 

 

  Secured Loans 

excluding 
deposits 

Unsecured 

Loans 

Deposits Total 

Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning 

of the financial year 

    

i) Principal Amount - - - - 
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 
iii) Interest accrued but not 

due 

- - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) - - - - 

Change in Indebtedness during 
the financial year 

    

* Addition - - - - 

* Reduction - - - - 
Net Change - - - - 
Indebtedness at the end of the 
financial year 

    

i) Principal Amount - - - - 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 
iii) Interest accrued but not 
due 

- - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) - - - - 
 
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or 
Manager: - 
 

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total 
Amount 

    ---- --- --- ---- ---- 

1 Gross salary - - - - - 
(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in section 17(1) of 
the Income-tax Act, 1961 

- - - - - 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 

- - - - - 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 

1961 

- - - - - 

2 Stock Option - - - - - 
3 Sweat Equity - - - - - 
4 Commission 

- as % of profit 
- others, specify… 
  

  

- - - - - 

5 Others, please specify 
  
  

- - - - - 

  Total (A) 
  

  

- - - - - 

  Ceiling as per the Act 
  

  

- - - - - 

 

  



30 

 

 
B. Remuneration to other directors: - 

 

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount 

1 Independent Directors Tushar 
Pagar 

Bhaskarrao 
Mundhe 

- -  

Fee for attending board 

committee meetings 

55,000 50,000 - - 1,05,000 

Commission - - - - - 
Others, please specify - - - - - 
Total (1) - - - - - 

2 Other Non-Executive 
Directors 

- - - - - 

Fee for attending board 
committee meetings 

- - - - - 

Commission - - - - - 

Others, please specify - - - - - 

  Total (2) - - - - - 

  Total (B)= (1+2) - - - - - 

  

Total Managerial 

Remuneration 

55,000 50,000 - - 1,05,000 

 

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than 
     MD/Manager/WTD:    
 

SN Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

    Prakash 
Thavil, CEO 

Baburao 
Nirmal, 

CFO 

Mahendra 
Shinde, 

CS 

Total 

1 Gross salary 10,00,518 9,00,000 6,00,000 25,00,518 

(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in section 17(1) of 
the Income-tax Act, 1961 

- - - - 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 

- - - - 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary 

under section 17(3) Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

- - - - 

2 Stock Option - - - - 
3 Sweat Equity - - - - 
4 Commission - - - - 
  -  as % of profit - - - - 
  others, specify… - - - - 
5 Others, please specify - - - - 
  Total 10,00,518 9,00,000 6,00,000 25,00,518 

 

  



VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Nashik Municipal Smaft City Development Corporation Ltd.

fi,*4e-
Mr. Sitaram Kunte
Chairman, DIN-O267 OA99

Date: 20lOgl2OLg

Type Section of
the

Companies
Act

Brief
Description

Details of
Penalty /

Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority
[RD /
NCLT/

couRTI

Appeal
made,

if any (give
Details)

A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment
Compoundinq
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compoundinq
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C. R. SAGDEO & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To
The Members of
Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Limited
Nashih

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

t. We ltave audited the accornpanying stanclalone financial statements of Nashik
Municipal Srnart City Development Corporation Limited ("the compan$, rvhich
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 3l March,20l9, tl-re Statement of Profit and Loss and
Casl-r Flou/ statemer)t fbr the year then endecl, and a surnmary of the significant
accounting policies and othel exltlanatory inlbrmation.

2. In ottr opinion and to the best of'our inlbrmation and according to the explanations
given to us, except fbr the eflbcts of the rnatters described in the Basis lor Opinion
paragraph, the afbresaid standalone financial statements give the inlbrrnation requiled
by the Act in the mannet' so recluired and give a true and fair vies, in conlormity rvith
the accounting principles generrally accepted in India of the state of aflairs of the
Company as at 3l March,2019, and its profit, total comprehensive income and the
changes in equity fbr the yeal endecl on that date.

Basis of Opinion
3. We conducted our audit in accorclance r,r,ith the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified

under section 143(IO) of'the Companies Act,2O13. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are Iurther describecl in the Auditor's Res;ronsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Staterncnts section of'our- rerport. We are independent of the Cornpany in
accordance u'ith the Clocle of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together u'ith the etl-rical rerluirernents that are rele'n,ant to our- audit of the
financial staternents under the provisions o1- the Cornpanies Act, eo$ and the Rules
thereunder, and tve have fullllled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance rvith
these requil'ernents and the Code of'Etliics. We believe that the audit evidence rve have
obtained is strfflcient and appropliate to provide a basis Ibr our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
4. Statutory Dues

a. As lter the rnfblrnation 1;t'ovicle ancl as pel' our verification, it is observed that the
GST Ilettrlns llled clo not rnatch s,ith the boohs of accounts maintained. Also, no

H O 'PRABHA NIWAS" RAHATE COLONY JAIL ROAD, NAGPUR - 440022 TEL 2424634 I2447756 t 57

NASHIK BRANCH : Block No. 3, 1st Floor, Margaret Tower, Near Panasonic Showroom, Canada Corner, Nashik422001

Mumbai Branch : Iel 022 - 41272121 - 22 - 23 - 24 - 25 Pune Branch : Tel : 91-20-25638679
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reconciliation of-books o1'accounts u,ith the CIST returns has been rnaintainecl by the
cornpany.

b. During the year the cotttpany has legistered itself under the Ernployees Proviclent
Fund Scheme. As per the PF Scher:re if an employee is clrarving salary (Basic + DA)
of rrtore than Rs. l5,ooo/-, suc,h ernployee is not required to become a member of
PF, if he is not already holding the PIr membership. It is observecl that, the same has
not been cornplied by the compan.y.

5. Others
a. Grants received have been accounted on

change in accounting of gl.ants vis-A-r,is
Grant,,- received \\,el-e accountecl on receipt
ol'Rs. 9oo lakhs sanctioned llut receivable
for.

accnral basis during the year. There is

previous year. In the previous year the
basis but during the current year Grants
as Slst March 2Olg have been accounted

b' In the al:sence of'suppot'ting documents ,/ recorcls accounting fbr z% MOUD share
of Incorne & transfbr to expenses is not done.

6. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters noted above from para
to 5.

l. Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those rnatters that, in our prolbssional .iuclgement, were
significance in our audit of the flnancial statements of the cun-ent periocl. These
u'ere acldressecl in the context of orrr audit of the f rnancial statements, ancl in
our opinion thet'eron, ancl tt'e clo not provicle a separate opinion on these rnatters.

of most

matters
forming

The cotr4lany's main oiriective is to plan, clesign ancl irnplernent pro.jects envisaged
under Srnat't City Proposal of'Nashik Municipal Corporation uncler the Srnart City
Mission of Clovernment of'Inclia. Grants are receivecl frorn Central Government, State
Goverrtnlertt and Local body rvhich are further utilizecl for the implementation of the
stipulated 1;roiects. Vendot's are appointecl through tenc.lering process for
implernentation of- the pro,jects ancl payments are made accorcling to the conditions
rnaintained in the tr:ncler on successfirl completion of pro.ject milestones.
Ret'enue Grants receivecl are creditecl to the Statement of Profit & Loss to the extent of
its eligible utilization as per applicable stipulation of' the sanction of the grant.
Government grants related to A & OE trxpenses are to be recognizecl on systematic
basis in the profit and loss statement orrer the periods necessary to match them rvith the
related costs rvhich they are intendecl to cornpensate. There grants are shorvn under the
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head "Direct Income" in the Staternent of'Plofit & Loss. In case of Capital Grants as

received cltrring the lteliocl rrncler consicleration are considered as Long-term liabilities.
Fulther interest received on these grants is also credited to the respective grant since
none of the plo.ject undel irnl;lementation ale completed.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit procedut'es to assess the recognition of revenue included the follorving:
The details o1'the grants sanctioned by Central ()overnrnent fbr each city uncler Smart
City are ar,ailable on the rveb portal smartcities.gov.in, the said grants are verifled fr-om
this portal. Also, the capital grants utilized during the year are verifiecl rvith the actual
expenditure macle and the supporting of the same.

In case of A & OE Grants the expencliture incurr.ed during
company viz. salary, ofJlce expenditure, electricity, etc.
supporting docurnents.

Evaluating ,jorrrnals entlies postecl to grants, on a specific
comparing' details o1- these .joulnal entries u,ith relevant
rvhich includecl service contracts and progr.ess reports
appointed vendors lbr cornpletion of Smar.t City Pro,jects.

the year for operation of the
is verified rvith respective

rislt-based sarnple basis, and

underlyin g clocumentation,
of the u,orlt cornpleted by

Infbrrnation Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

8. The Cornpan.y's rnanagerl)ent ancl Board of Directors are responsible fbr the preparation
of'the other infblrnation. The othel inlbrmation cornprises the inlbrrnation included in
the Managernertt Discussion and Analysis, Roard's Report inclucling Annexures to
Board's Report, Rusiness Responsibility Report and Corporate Governance, but does
not include the standalone financial staternents and our auditor''s report thereon.

9. Otrr opinion on the standalone financial staternents does not cover the otl-rer infbrmation
and u'e do not exl)l'ess any fb.m o1'assurance conclusion thereon.

1o. In connection u,ith our audit of the standalone linancial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other infbrrnatiort ancl, in cloing so, consider u,hethel the other infbrrnation
is ntatet'ially inconsistent s,ith the standalone financial staternents or our knorvledge
obtained duling tlte course o1'our audit or othenvise appears to be rnater.ially misstated.

tI. II based on the u,orlt tve have perfbrrned, u,e conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this othel infbrrnation, \\/e are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to rci)olt in this regarcl.

Page I s
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Management's Responsibility fbr the standarone Financial statements
12. The Company's Roat'clof Directors is responsible fur the matters in section tg4(S) of the

Companies Act, 20rs ("the Act") rvith lesl)ect to the preparation of these standalone
financial staternents that give a tnre and fhil vies, ol the financial position, financial
perlormance and cash Ilou,s of the Cornpany in accorclance rvith the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standarcls specifiecl
under Section 133 of the Act, read u,ith relevant nrles ol the Cornpanies (Accounts)
Rules,20l4,.

l3' This responsibility also inclucles maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance rvith the provisions of the Act fbr safeguarcling the assets of, the Company
and for preventing and cletecting frauds ancl other irregularities; selection and
application of'approl;r'iate accounting policies; rnalting.juclgments ancl estimates that are
reasonable and prttclent; and clesign, irnplementation and maintenance ol adequate
internal financial controls, that u,ere operating effectively lbr ensuring the accuracy and
complerteness of-the accottnting records, relevant to the preparation ancl presentation of
tl"re standalone flnancial statenrents that give a tnre ancl fair vieu, ancl are fi.ee from
material rnisstatement, s,hether- due to fl.aud or el.rol..

14. In pleparing the standalone frnancial staternents, rnanagement is responsible for
assessing the Cornpany's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the goingconcern basis of accounting unless
rnanagelnent either intends to Iiquidate the Cornpany or to cease ol)erations, or has no
realistic alternative but to clo so.

The Board of' Directors are responsible fbr overseeing the Company's linancial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility
15. Our ob.jectives al'e to obtain reasonable assurance altout u,hether the stanclalone

financial stateruents as a s'hole are fi'ee Il'orn rnaterial misstatenlent, u,hether clue to
fraud or erl'or, and to issue an auditor's report that inclur.les our opinion. Reasonable
assul-ance is a high level olassul'ance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conductecl in
accordance s'ith SAs tvill alu,ays detect a material misstatement u,hen it exists.
Misstaternents can at'ise fl'orn fl'aud or error and are considerecl rnaterial i[ inclividually
or in the aggregate, they coulcl reasonably be exltec-tecl to influence the economic
decisions olusers taken on the basis of these standalone Iinancial statements.
As part of an audit in accorclance u,ith SAs, u,e exercise profbssional ,judgment ancl
rnaintain profbssional shepticism throughout the audit. we also:

Identily ancl assess the rislts of material rnisstatement of the standalone financial

Page | +
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responsive to those rislts, and obtain audit evidence that is sLrfficient and appropriate
to provide a basis fbr our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material rnisstatement
resulting fi'orn fratrd is higher than fbr one resulting Ii'om error, as lraud may
involve collu"-ion, lorgery, interntional ornissions, misrepresentations, or the override
ofinternal control.

- Obtain an ttnclerstanding of internal flnancial controls relevant to the audit in order
to design atrdit proceclttres that are appropl'iate in the circumstances. Under section
t4'3(3)(i) of the Act, rl,e are also responsible for expressing our opinion on rvhether
the Cornpany has adequate internal Ilnancial controls system in place ancl the
operating eflectiveness of such controls.

- Evaluate the approl;riateness of'accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimaters and relatecl clisclosules rnade by management.

- Concltrde on the appropriateness of'nlanagement's use of the going concern basis of
accounting ancl, basecl on the audit evidence obtained, rvhether a material
uncertainty erxists related to events or conclitions that rnay cast significant doubt on
the Cornpany's ability to continue as a going concern. If rve conclucle that a material
uncertainty exists, \\fe al'e requirecl to drau, attention in our auditor's report to the
related clisclosttt'es in thc stanclalone Iinancial staternents or, if such clisclosures are
inaderltrate, to rnodify our opir-rion. Our conclusions are basecl on the audit eviclence
obtained tU) to the clate of'otrt'auditor's leport. Ho\\,evel', future events or conclitions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Erraluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
staternents, including tlie disclosures, and rvhether the standalone financial
staternents repre.sent ther unclerlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of'rnisstaterr)ents in the standalone Ilnancial staternents
that, individually <lt' in aggrcgate, rnaltes it plobable that the econornic clecisions of a

reasonallly ltnol'ledgeable user of the financial statements rnay be influenced. We
consider rluantitative nrateriality ancl cltialitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit u'ork ancl in evaluating the results of our worl{; and (ii) to evaluate the eflect of
any iclentified rnisstaternents in the financial staternents.

We commttnicate s'ittr those charged u,ith governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and tirning of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
signilicant de{iciencies in internal control that u,e identify during our auclit.

We also llrovide those chalged rvith governance u,ith a statenlent that rve have
corr4lliecl rvith relevant ethical rerluirernents regarding independence, ancl to

Page | 5
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communicate n,ith thern all relationships ancl other matters that may reasonably be

thought to bear on our independcncc, and s,hcrc applicable, related safeguards.

From the rnatters cornmunicated s,ith those charged rvitl"r govel-nance, rve deterrnine

those matters that u,ere of, rtrost significance in the audit of the standalone financial

staternents of the current period ancl are there{bre the key audit matters. We describe

these matters in our auditor's report unless larv or legulation precludes public

disclosure about the rlatter or u,hen, in extremely rare circttmstances, \\Ie determine

that a rnattel' shoulcl not be cornrnunicated in orlr report llecause tire adverse

conse(preltces of doing so s,ould reasonably be expected to otttrveigh the public interest

beneflts ol strch corrtrttunication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

l6.As requirecl by the Companies (Auditor's Report) C)rder,2016 ("the Order")

issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(lr) of the Act, we

give in "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraph a and + of
the C)rder.

17. As required by Section 143(3) ol the Act:

a) We have sought and, ol;tained all the information and explanations rvhich to the

best of our hnou,ledge and belief rver"e necessary lbr the ptrrpose of,our audit.

b) in our opinion, prol)er boolts of account as recluired by larv have been hept by the

Cornpany so fhr as it appears fl'onr our exarnination of those boolts.

c) the Balance Sheet, the Staterrnent of Profit ancl Loss and Cash Flou'Staternent dealt

u,ith by this Report arc in agt'eetrent u'ith the boolis olaccottnt.

d) in our' <tpinion, the alilresaid standalone financial statements comply u'ith the

Accounting Standards plescrillecl under section 133 of-the, read rvith Rule z of the

Cornpanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of'the u,ritten representations received fl'om the directors as on Stst

March, ZO19 talten on lecord by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified as on Slst March,20lg fi'om being appointed as a director in terms of
Section t64 (2) of the Act.

In our opinion and to the l;est ol-our inlbrrnation and accorcling to the explanations

given to us, there are no signilicant rnatters lvhich are not rotttine in nature and

have an ach'erse eflbct on the lirnctiorting of the company.

Page | 0
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With respect to the aclequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of'the Company, relbr to our separate Report in "Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auclitor's Report in
accordance rvith Rule t t of the Con4ranies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2ot4, as

amended, in our opinion and to the best of our inforrnation and according to the
explanations given to rrs:

i. The Company iras clisclosed the irnpact ol- pending litigations on its
Irnancial position in its standalone flnancial statements;

ii. The Company clid not ltarre any long-terrn corltracts including derivative
contracts fbr rr'hich there u,ere any rnaterial fbreseeable losses.

iii. There \\rere no anrounts rvhich were required to lle transferred to the
Invcstol Education and Protection Fund by the Cilcle.

i'n,. Rasecl on the Auclit procedures and representations provided to us by the
rnanagement, s,e report that the clisclosrlres are in accordance rvith the
books o1- accounts rnaintained by the cornpany and as procluced to us by
the Managernent.

Date: l6tl,August 2019 For C. R. Sagdeo & Co,

Chartered A nts

Place: Nashik
UDIN - 19 I+o33IAAAAAUgss+

rt i eevzrn V. Tambulu,aclikar
Partner
Membership No.: l+O333

#"s
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C.R. SAGDEO & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ANNEXURE A TO IND_E_PENII)ENT AUpTTOR'S REPORT

REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH I6 UNDE,R TI-IE HEADING "REPORT ON OTHER
LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIRtrMEN'I'S'' OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
OF;

NASHIK MUNTCTPAL _SMABT_CIT_Y D_EyELQ, rMENT _eq BLO R ATrON r,rMrTEp
FOR THE YEAR ENDED slsr MARCI-I qQ.tg

On the basis of sttch checks its \\i€: considcle'rl aPPropriate ancl in terrr)s ol'the infbrrnation and
ex1>lanatior)s given to [rs, s e state that-

i) (u) tl're Cotttl;any has maintainccl I)r'ol)er recorcls shorving firll particulars,
<pantitative clctails and sitrrations <t1'Iixecl asscts.

(b) As explainecl to us, {ixerrl asscts lrave beren physically verillecl by the rnanagement
at reasonaltle intervals, no nraterial clisclerpancies u,ere noticed on such verification.

(c) The Cornpany cloes not hold any imnrovable 1;roperty and there is no question of
the title deecl being held in tire narne o1'the cornpany.

As explained to tts, irtverttories corul;r'ising of'Worli in llrogress have been physically
velifled dtrring the year by the r))ana.qerner)t at reasonable inten,als. No material
discrepancy tt as rtoticed on physical verriflcation of' stocks lty the rnanagement as

conrpared to book rr:cords.

According to tlte infbrmation ancl explarrations givcn to rrs, the Cornpany has not
granted any loans, secttrecl ol' unsecurecl to companies, fir-rns or other parties
covered in thc t'ergister maintainecl uncler section 189 of- the Cornpanies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the provisions of' Clausc (iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
ap1;licable to the C)ornpany.

According to tlte infortnation ancl ex1;lanations given to us, the Cornpany has neither
advanced any loan inclucling any loan repl'es-ented lly a book dellt, to any of its
clirectors ot to any other person in u'horn clilector is interested, nor made any
investment cluring the repolting 1;c'r'iod, henc,e the saicl Clause (iv) of'the Order is
not applicrable to the cornltany.

In ottr opinion attcl accorcling to tlrc infbrnration ancl explanations given ttl us, the
cotnpany ltas I)ot acceptcd any tlcposits fi'orn the public cltrring the year in

ii)

iii)

ir,)

rr)

accordance u'ith thc provisions <ll'section 73 to 76 of'the Act ancl rules fl'amed th

H.O.'PRABHANIWAS',RAHATECOLONYJAILROAD, NAGPUR-44OO22TEL:2424634t2447756157FA/.
PUNE BRANCH: TEL O2O-27295478/79 FAX No.25638437 MUMBAI BRANCH :O22-41272121/22 NASHIKBRANCH: Oi
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under. Accolclingly, the provisions
applicable to the Cornpany.

of'Cllausc (,') (o), (ir) ancl (c) of' the Order are not

t,i) As explained to us, the Central Clor.ernmernt has specifiercl fbr the rnaintenance of
Cost Recor-ds undel sub section (t) ol section t+ti of the Companies Act, 2013.

Hou,evel', u,e have l;een inforrned that the sarne not specitled to be rnaintained to the

Cornpany.

vii) (a) According to thc infbrmation ancl cxplanations givcn to us and according to thc
books and recorcls, the C)onrpany is generally lergular in clepositing the undisputed
statutory ducs inclrrcling provirlc-'nt firnc[, r:rnployees state insurance, income tax,
Goods & Sen'ice tax, dtrty of' trrrstonrs, c'ess ancl any other statutory dues to the

alpropriate arrtlroritics.

(b) According to the infbrrnation and cxplanations given to us and as per records of
the contpany, thel'e u,ere outstancling statutol'y dues of Provident Fund of Rs.

ll,25o/- (trnrploycr'& Employee (lontlibution) as on 3l't March 2Ol9 fbr a period
of more than six rnonths fi'om the date they ltec,arne ltayable.

t,iii) The Conrpany has not talten any loan or borrou,ings fi'onr financial institutions,
banlt, Govelnnrent; hence ther said Clause (viii) of'the Orcler is not applicable.

i") The Cornpany ltas not raist-'cl an)' rr)oncys by u,ay ot'initial pulllic ollbr or further
pul:lic oflbr (inclucling debt instrurncnts) and terrn loans ancl hence the said Clause

(ix) o{'the Orclel is not ap1;lic:abie.

x) As inlbrrned ancl lepolted to us therc is no fl'aucl by the Cornpany or any fraud on

the Cornpany I)y its ofllcerrs or enrployccs noticecl or reportecl cluring the year and

hence the saicl clause (x) o1'tlte orr.[cr is not a1;plicable.

,i) Accolcling to tl're inlbrnration ancl explanations given to us, \\/e report that
rnanagerial rernuneration has been 1;aicl or proviclecl in accorclance rvith the requisite
approvals tnandatecl by the provisions of section 197 ol'the Conrpanies Act 2013

read rvith Scheclule V to the Companies Act.

xii) The company is not a Niclhi C)ornpan5,, [rernce ther saicl Cllause (xii) of-the Order is not
applicable.

Gozkttualzbn iliet

xiii) According to tlre infblrnation and cxltlar)ati()ns given to
u'ith the related parties and hence conrplianc-e s,ith
Cornpanies Act, 20l3 is not applic:able to the cornJ)any.

G{f,U,s,*"9 *.
Cfir, t*u r/-ff.* u z trot ir

rrs, there are no transactions
sections 177 and 188 of

{N
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xir,) The Company has n()t n)acler any l)l'cfbrcntial allotrnent or private placement of
shares or lirlly or partly cronvel'til)le clerbcntures cltrring the year 20l8-19 and hence

the said Clause (xiv) of-the Orcler is not alrplicabler.

xv) The Company has not enterecl into any non-cash transactions u,ith directors or
persons connectecl u,ith hirn and hence the saicl Clause (xr,) of the Order is not
applicable.

xvi) The cornpany is cngagecl in ctcsigning antl irnplementation of 1>rolects envisaged

tunder Srnat't City ploposal r>1-Nashik N4unicil;al Cor'poration unclel the Smart City
Mission ol Govelnrlcnt of India ancl is not a NRI'C; Itence the said Clause (xvi) of
the Older is not applicaltle.

l)n1g. 16tlt August 20l9 I'-ol C. R. Sagdero & Co,

Clharterrccl Accou ntants
F.l'l.N: 1Os95[,'W

Place: Nashik
UDIN - l e l 4,0.3ssAAAAAtless4.

n V. Tarnbuln,adihar

Mernlrerrshilr No.: 14,0333

Page I s
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C.R. SAGDEO & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH I z(g) UNDER THE HEADING ..REPoRT oN
QAHE
EVEN DATE:

NASHIK MUNICIPAL SMART PITY DEVF-LOPMENT CORI'ORATION LIMITED
FOR YEAR ENDED slsr MARCI-I 20 r ti

Report on the InternalFinancial Controls nncler Clause (i) of srrb-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, qOtg ("the Act")

We have audited the Internal Financial Conrrols Over Financial Reporting of Nashik
MLrnicipal Stnat't City Developrnt:nt Corporirtion Lirnited ("thc Company") as of, s t
March 20l9 in coniunction with oLrr auclit o1'the standalone financial staternernts of the
Cornpany fbr the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible firl establishing arr(l maintaininu internal
financial contl'ols based on the intelnal control over financial lepoltirig criteria established
by the Cornpany considering the essential cornponents of internal control stated in the
Gtridance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Cbntrols over Finarrcial Reporting issued by
the Instittrte of Chartered Accolrntants o1'India ('ICAI'). These responsibilitiers irrclr-rde the
design, impletnentation and maintenance of acle<1uate internal ilnancial controls that were
opel'ating eflbctively for ensurirlg the orclclly arrrl efficient conclrrct of its busincss, including
aclherence to tlte Cornpany's policics, tlrt: sali,rlLrar.ding of its irssct.s, the pr.everrtion and
detection of fl'atrds and errors, thc ar:cr.rrat'y ancl corrrpleteness o1-thc accounting rt:cor-ds, and
the tirnely preparation of reliable Iinancial inlirrrrration, as rerlrrirr,rl under. the C)ompanies
Act, 2013.

Au ditors' Responsibility

Ottr responsibility is to express arr olrinion on tlre Cornpany's inlcrnal financial controls
ovet'linancial reporting based on oul'auclit. Wc conducted our arrrlir in accor.danct: with the
Gr'ridance Note on Audit of Intelnal Firrancial Controls ovcr'1,'inancial Reyrorting ('the
Guidance Note') and the Standards on Ar-rcliting, issned by ICIAI ancl dcerrrecl to be
prescribed ttnder Section 14,9(10) of the Companit,s Act,ZotS, to tlrc extent applicable to an
atrdit of internal financial controls, both applicairlt,to an audit o{'lrrrcr.nal Financial Controls
antl, Iloth issttecl by the Institute o1'Clhartc'r'ecl .\ccc'nntants o1'Irrrlirr. 'fhose Starrrlartls ancl
the Guidancer Note require that r,rrc corn1tl.1, r,vith cthical requir.crrrrlrrts and plan arrcl perlorrn
the atrdit to obtain reasonable assur.ance irbout rrlrethel adecluate ir)rcl'nai frnancial controls
ol'et' financial reporting was establisherl anrl rrraintained anrl if' such controls operated
eflbctively in all material respects.

OLrl'audit inr''olves perlorrning procedrrlt',s to olrrain audit evitlr,ni.r: al;oLrt the arlequacy of
the internal flnancial controls s.ystenr over linancial rePor.t irrrl and their. operating
eflectir,'eness.

Our audit of internal financial contr.ols ovel iinancial
tunderstanding of internal financial contr-ols ovcr. flnancial

repoItirrg irrclr-rded obtaining a

repoi'tirrg, assessing the rislt

H.O.'PRABHANIWAS',RAHATECOLONYJAILROAD, NAGPUR-440022TEL 2424634t2447756157FFX

" ( ,aN lP;

PUNE BRANCH : TEL 020-27295478/79 FAX No. 25638437 MUMBAI BRANCH :022- 41272121l22 NASHTK BRANCH :
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a material r,veakness exists, anci testing and erraluating tlrc design anrl operating
eflbctiveness of internal control baserd on the assessecl rislt. The pr'occciures selectecl depend
on the atrditors'.jr"rdgment, inclr-rding the assessment of the lislts oi'rnaterial rnisstaternent of
the standalone financial statements, wirether due to fl'aLrd or en'ol'.

We believe that the audit evidence \,\/e hai'e obtained is sLrfficierit and appropriate to provide
a basis fbr our audit opinion on the Cornpany's inter"nai flrrarrciirl controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial llcportirrg

A company's internal financial control over financial lepoltirrq is a process clesigned to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability o{'lirrrrrrr:ial repolting and the
preparation of financial statements fbr crxternal pLu'poscs irr iit:t;orrlance rvith generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal linarrcirrl control o\/cl'financial
reporting inclucles those policies ancl pr'oct:clLrres that *

(t) Pertain to the maintenance of recortls that, in rc.asonalrlt'rlctiril, acculatcly ancl fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of'the assets of-the corlrl)iur.\,;

(z) Provide I-easonable assurance that transactions are: r'cc;olrlctl ls necessary to permit
preparation of linancial staternents in accordance rvith g-t:rrcrrrll;, acceptecl accounting
principles, ancl that receipts and cxpc.nrlitures ol tlre co1)ll)lr)J' irrc being rnacle only in
accorclance rvith authorizations of the rnanagement ancl clircctors o['the cornpan)/; ilr]d

(s) Provide rea.sonable assurance regardirrg preventiorr or tirrr'l.r' rlrtcction of trnauthorized
acqLrisition, Llse, or disposition of the coml)?lny's assets that c'rrrrlrl lxrve a rnaterial cflect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls ovcr Iiirrrrxri:rl Reporting

Becaltse of the inherent limitations of irrternal financial controls ovcr' financial reporting,
inclurding the possibility of collr-rsion or irnproper mar)aqe rncrrt ovi'r'r'irl(: of contlols, rnaterial
nrisstaternents due to error or fi-aucl nray occLlr and n<tt bc tlcllr'lcil. r\lso, pr'<-r.jcctions of any
evalltation of the internal financial controls over finanr:ial rr'por tirrg to iutulc 1rc.r'iods are
sub.ject to the rislt that the internal flnantrial contr<tl ovr:r'firurrrcirrl rcportinu rrray become
inadeqLrate because of changes in conditic)ns, or that the rlt'r1r't,r ol cornytliarrcc rvith the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Emphasis of Matter

The Company has to improve upon tlrc cflective intelrral irrulit :;.1'ste)rn so as to cover all
major at'eas rvith extensive scope. As o1'r)ow r)o Interrral Arrrlitol lrrs rrclt becn altp<tinted by
the company but consultant has been appointed to ovcr'loolt t,r tlri'overall accoLlr)tancy and
statutory cornpliance of the company.'fht'scope of intclnal rrrrrlit,rl ol appointed consultant
should define risk areas lilte, physical verification of llr c,l rrssets and inventory,
reconciliation of statutory dues paid with correspondins- r'etrrrrs tilt,tl.'fhis cor.rld 1:otentially
result into r,vealt checks and balancers arrcl Lrnrepol'tc(l firrrrri irrl irreilulalities rrltimately

ffi
restrlting into losses and distortecl finarrt'ill leportinu.

I'age I z
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Opinion

In oltt'opinion, except for the eflects / possibie eflects of the rnaterirrl u,ealinesses clcscribed
above on the achievement of the olrjerctirzers of thc control crito'ia, thc Comltany has
maintained, in all rnaterial respects, arlerluate internal financia] r:ontlols over flnancial
reporting ancl such internal financial controls over' financial reporting were opcrating
eflectively as of March 31, 2019, bast'd on the internal corrtrol ovcr' financial reporting
criteria established by the Companl, considering the esscntial t:orrrponents of internal
contl'ol staterd in the Guridance Notc on Audit of Intelrral Finrrr-rcial (lrrrlr'ols Over li'irrancial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Charterecl Accountants o1'India.

L)ate: I6'tl, ALrgust 2Ol9 F'or C. R. Sagdeo & Co,

Cha ltered Accou rr ta nts
Ir.11.N: 10s959\ /

Gottzttruatzbn e/6et

Place: Nashik
UDIN - I 9 I,l.O33gAAAAAUggg+

CA. San jercvan V.'l'a rrrbrrlwadilia r

Pa rtner
N4ernberslrip No., 1,1 0.3.33

.ffiw#
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Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Limited
Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2019

I. EOUITY AND LIABILITIES:

(1) Shareholders' funds
(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves & Surplus

(2) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowings
(b) Deferred Tax Liability
(c) Other Long Term Liabilities
(d) Long Term Provisions

(3) Current Liablities
(a) Short Term Borrowings
(b) Trade Payables
(c) Other Current Liabilities
(d) Short Term Provisions

TOTAL

II. ASSETS:

(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Fixed Assets

(i) Tangible Asset
(ii) Intangible Asset
(iii) Capital Work- in- Progress

(b) Deferred Tax Asset (Net)
(c) Non-Current Investments
(d) Long Term Loans and Advances
(e) Other Non-Current Assets

(2) Current Assets
(a) Current Investments
(b) Inventories
(c) Trade Receivables
(d) Cash and Bank Balances
(e) Short Term Loans and Advances
(f) Other Current Assets

5,00,000
32,54,686

3 4,60,02,32,735

4 2,49,845
5 17,67,86,837
6 6l,7O,Ll6

58,01,839

6,69,27,L50
2,60,628

4,O5,O3,64,626

7,35,9-L5

7,35,93,805
uu':o'

3,gt,32,58,;-62

6,27,07,339

5,00,000
4,76,56t

3,93,08,69,841

!,27,L2,382
8,38,78,295
2,L9,27,547

10
11

L2

o,qa,zoo
4,52,23,84,820

t9,LL,73,4t6

Significant Accounti ng
Disclosures

TOTAL
Policies & Other Ll

As per our separate report of even date attached

For C. R. Sagdeo & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Regn. N14 1O8959W

Sanjeevan V. Tambulwadika
Partner

____!,78,7]E!49_ 4,O5,O3,64,626

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Ltd,

".,s#(Chief Executive

fu\6s"-ru-'
ilD65urr.o Nirmal

Officer)
(Chief Financial

Officer)M. No. 140333
Place: Nashik
Date: il 6 AUG Z0lg

Mr. Sitaram Kunte
(DrN- 02670899)

K{,-,;n",
(DrN- 0712f,6s6)

(Company Secretary)

1
2

7

8
9

Mr. Mlllbrrfra Shinde

CS-NMSCDCL
Typewritten Text
55



 

CS-NMSCDCL
Typewritten Text
56



Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended on 31st March 2O19

.03.

1. INCOME

Revenue from Operations
Other Income

TOTAL REVENUE

2. EXPENDITURE

Cost of Materials Consumed
Changes in WIP
Employee Benefits Expenses
Finance Cost
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Other Expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES

Profit Before Exceptional and Extraordinary Items
Add: Exceptional and Extraordinary Items
Profit Before Tax (PBT)

Tax Expenses
Current tax
Deferred tax

Profit from Continuing Operations
transferred to General Reserves (PAT)

5,36,32,;1513 2,L5,fi,;20

L4

15
16

lo,qo,gzz

3,21,665
L,7B,2L,tsl

_______! 9 2 93_ 2,LL,89,739

27,78,L25

3,73,98L

3,73tggl

t,25,78O
(24,590)

2"?2"?n

Significant Accounting Policies
Disclosures

& Other tl

As per our separate report of even date attached

For C. R. Sagdeo & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 1O8959W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Ltd.

,..M
(Chief Executive

,..-U..
6urao Nirmal

(Chief Financial
Officer)

M. No. 140333
Place: Nashik
oate:,1 $ AUG 2019

Officer)

(Company Secretary)

____Efi,3?p_1E_ 2,ts,63J2O

oo,oz,z_oc

15,99,768
4,22,30,77t

37,39,LL2

37,39tL12

1 1,53,010
(1,92,023)

#*\
i( *l't8"' )iM

Mr. SiFaram Kunte /K"ii"n",
(DrN- 07L2L6s6)

C[. Sanjeevan V. T
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Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Limited
Cash Flow Statement as on 3lst March 2019

PARTTCULARS 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

A

Add :

Less :

Add :

Less :

Add :

Less :

Cash flow from Operating Activities
Profit before Taxation and Extraordinary items

Depreciation and Arrortisation Experlse
Interest & Financial Charges
Interest and Dividend Income
Provision for Taxation
Deferred Tax Asset
Proposed Dividend and Tax

Operating profit before Working Capital Changes
Adiustment for

Trade and Other receivables
Inventories
Trade Payables and Other Liabilities
Decrease in Shoft Term Provisions
Increase in Other Current Assets
Increase in Deferred Tax Assets
Decrease in WIP
Increase in other current liabilities
Increase in Revenue grant From GOI, GOM & NMC

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Interest and Dividend Income

Purchase of Fixed Assets
Movement in Advances & Non Current Assets
Increase in Investments

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Borrowings & Others

Grant received from GOM & NMC
Grant received from GOI

Proceeds from Issue of shares
Issue of shares

Repayment of Loan
Interest & Charges
Unsecured loans & Long Term Sources
Secured Loans

Net Cash flow from Financing Activities

Net Increase/Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents as on 1-4-2018 (Op. Bal)
Cash and Cash equivalents as on 31-3-2019 (Cl. Bal)

As per our separate report of even date attached

37,39,L12
t5,99,7_68

( 1 1,s3,0 10)
(1,92,0_23)

39,93,847

(6,46,3_66)

(1,24,62,537)
(L,57,57,437)

(t2,84,66,077)
r,92,O23

66,66,655
t,81,24,t3t
7,47,84,4t1

(5,35,7L,344)

(66,65,692)

(66,65,692)

58,64,35,941
8,29,25,953

66,93,62,894

60,9 1,25, B5B
3,91,32,s8,962
4,52,23,84,820

3t73,ggl
3,2 1,665

( 1,25,780)
(24,sg1)

5,45,276

:
t,26,34,329
2,17,77,4L1

(5,48,42,7_84)

(7,3s,93,80s)
29,O4,209

8,09,74,086

(96tOLt279)

(10,57,580)

(1O,57,580)

1,52,55,37,382
t,02,83,80,439

2,55,39,L7,82L

2,54,32,58,962
1,3 7,00,00,000
3,97,32,58,962

C. R. Sagdeo & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ts Nashik Municipal smart city Development corporation Ltd.

3''i::'rr.^ . t ,losesew 
,,,,f$i.* 4/'

l l<i / \' \" Mr. sitaram Kunte
ll* I FRN No' \" ii torn- o267o8ee)

#N"vrambuwaW::sP dil*
Place: Nashik (Chief Executive (Chief Financial
Date: I 6 AU0 2019 officer) 

N. n Mo']"""

mrlFtahlb*d-shinde
(Company Secretary)
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Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Limited
Notes on Financial Statements for the period ended on 31st March 2019

PARTICULARS 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

(Previous Year 50,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each)

Issued, Subscribed and Fullv Paid-Uo Eouitv Caoita!

50,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up
(Previous Year 50,000 Equity Shares) 5,00,000 5,00,000

TorAL-5,9@- 

-E9g,ooo-

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below

50,000 50,000

5O,OOO 5O,0OO

The Company has only one class of share referred to as Equity Shares having par value of Rs.
10/-. Each holder of one equity share is entitled to one vote per share.

L.2 The details of Shareholders holding more than 5olo shares

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Caoital

50,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued During the year
Equity Shares at the end of the year

Name of the Shareholders
Shares of State Govt of Maharashtra
Number of Shares
Percentage of Holding

Shares of Nashik Municipal Corporation
Number of Shares
Percentage of Holding

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Profit & Loss Account
As per Last Balance Sheet
Add: Profit for the period

___________Ep9p9L ___________5p9p9l

25,000
50.000/o

25,000
50.00o/o

4,76,561
27,78,L25

32-54,686

25,000
50.00%

25,000
50.00%

2,03,770
2,72,79L

4,76,56r

-----32E3 
9- -----------!,19s6 1
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Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Limited
Notes on Financial Statements for the period ended on 3lst March 2019

PARTTCULARS 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

3 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

3.1 Grant from GOI

Opening Balance
Add- Received in During Year
Add- Interest Received During Year to be

Capitalised

Grant Capitalized with Project Completion

3.2 Grant from GOM

Opening Balance
Add- Received in During Year
Add- Interest Received During Year to be
Capitalised

Grant Capitalized with Project Completion

3.3 Grant from NMC

Opening Balance
Add- Received in During Year
Add- Interest Received During Year to be
Capitalised

5olo Grant Transfer to A& OE Grant
Grant Capitalized with Project Completion

Media Services

L,95,55,82,459

14,L9,64,789

2,09,75,47,248
5,9O,37,836

___3[3EEE2A!2_

90,oo,oo,ooo
96,00,00,000

9,55,82,459

1,95J5,82/59

I,gs;sEFI,4E6-

97,75,4L,229

7,09,82,395

!,04,85,23,624
2,95,18,9L8

@_

44,97,50,000
48,00,00,000

4,77,9L,229____mrry

______9ZEALE2e_

T OT AL--- 4,AO,OZ lZ,l ZS

TRADE PAYABLE

Total outstandinq dues of micro enterprises &
small enterprises

Total outstandino dues of creditors other than

99 ,77 ,46,153
50,00,00,000

10,00,01,586

1,59,77,47,739
2,55,10,204
2,95,18,918

@

':"'

99,002
43,200
77,800

30,000

94,8g,7g,;g2

4,87,66,56L--w*y
--9177A6"L53

-

__lp3prfg,81!_

(1s7)
3,515

62,109
5,200

3,35,574

L8,746

:
1,19,88,345

2,99,050

- iii) Hindi Times (Mediascope)'l' tr) om Travets' v) The Wall Street Journal ( RMA MEDIA)

'i. vi) [Uater Quality Laboratory Level -II, Nashik
' * vii) Astral

viii) Ulhas Borse & Co.
ix) KPMG Advisory Services Private Limited
x) Omega Systems
xi) AM Comutech Solutions

___-_-zEE4s_
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Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Limited
Notes on Financial Statements for the period ended on 31st March 2019

PARTICULARS 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
OTHER CURRENT LIABILTIES

Security Deposit (Refer Annexure-B)
EMD Deposit (Refer Annexure-9)
Test Charges Deduction
Royalty Payable
Chair Recovery
Withheld- C4 Infrastucture Pvt. Ltd.
Withheld- Kalyani Enterprises
Withheld- KPMG Advisory Services Pvt. Ltd.
Other Laibilities
NMC Fees for Tender Payable
Revenue Grant Received from GOI, GOM &
NMC (Refer Annexure- 5)

SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Duties & Taxes
Income Tax Payable
Other Provision

Provision for Exoenses
Audit Fees & Accounting Fees
Other Expenses (Refer Note below)

Other Expenses Provision
Salary Payable
CPF Payable Deduction
DCPS Payable Deduction
GIS Payable Deduction
Kanchan Bodhale Computer Loan Deduction
Kanchan Bodhale-Co-Op Society Deduction
Kanchan Bodhale Housing Loan Payable Deductior
Office Expenses Payable
PF Contribution- Employee Deduction
PF Contribution- Employer Deduction
Professional Tax Payable
TDS on Contractor Payable
TDS on GST @ 2o/o Payable
TDS on Professional Fees Payable
TDS on Salary Payable
CGST Tax Payable
SGST Tax Payable
GST on Tender Fees
ROC Charges Payable
Interest on CGST Tax Payable
Interest on SGST Tax Payable
Telephone Bill Payable
Vehicle Allowance Payable
Provision For Work (Neharu Garden)
Provision For Work (Smart Road)

45,81,239
74,22,446

25,650
93,172

2,87,000
14,50,168
45,87,766
25,50,455

24,799
5,645

15 ,57 ,58,497

81,000
60,89, 1 16

12,82,134
L6,10,975

t,,:OO

8,09,74,086

1,25,780
5,1 9,554

45,000
2,t2,37,2t3

---------j!29.1 ----J19,22,s4?
10,86,864

L9,572
t3,272

960
350
700

7,820
5,000
2,t60
2,340
6,600

37,561
6,82,734

19,472
L,23,900
3,23,L83
3,23,L83

6,240
16,000
27,732
27,732

2,818
40,000

L7,00,29L
t6,L2,632

60,99,116

I
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Nashik Municipal Smaft City Development Corporation Limited
Notes on Financial Statements for the period ended on 31st March 2019

1.03.20

FIXED ASSETS

Refer Annexure 1

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
Project U nder Construction
Kalidas Kalamandir
Mahatma Phule Kaladalan (WIP)
Neharu garden (WIP)
Cremotorium ta Amardham
Smart Road Ashok Stambh to Trimbak Naka(WIP)
Green Feild Project (WIP)

DEFERRED TAX

TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured and Coniidered Good)
Outstanding for period exceeding six months
Others - Unsecured. considered qood
Kalika Electricals
Kalyani Enterprises
Neev Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.
R. K. Sawant
Rohit Pansare
Sangam Renewables Ltd.
Skylark Construction

58,01,839

2,75,58,385
t,L3,28,482

2,7L,33,783
9,06,500

_______s&a.,Lso_

2,60,628

_______2&9828_

7,35,915

5,41,54,245
\,52,59,675

2,74,195
3g,o5,6go

@.
68,605

--------6-,6E-
10

1,690
97,484

2,216
51,922
L9,924

3,81,600
91,530

11 . CASH AND BANK BALANCES

j ' '' Balance with Banks

' Y"r B..k ltlidhi A/c- 141 (A & OE Account)
..u\ '

j' ' I ' Yes Bank Project A/c- 2OO (Project Account)
" {"" i }' State Bank of India A/c- ( Project Fund-

.381.620s2816)
,t tl.1 1.

. ''. cash in Hand' ' Fixed Deposits (Refer Annexure 7)

----------5,!5, -

58,03,826

1,51,65,70,994

10,000
3,00,00,00,000

2,06,87,640

3,89,25,6L,322

10,000

____fr288!,82o_ __3€_1E?Egp92_
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Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Limited
Notes on Financial Statements for the period ended on 3lst March 2O19

Advance Tax Paid
Interest Accrued
Receivable From NMC
Deposit (Assets)
Prepaid Expenses
TDS on FD Interest Receivable
Grant Receivable on Sanction basis from GOI &

OTHER INCOME
A & OE Income

Grant Received from Govt utilised for A & OE Ex
Tender Fees Received
Insurance Deduction
Interest on IT Refund
Labour Cess @ 1olo

Penalty Deduction
Service charges
Misc Income

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Staff Salary Account

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

Depreciation on Fixed Assets

s,36,3m1s-_____JrlEsil.2o_

60,62,364 30,46,923

_________s9,92997_ _________39,4988_

15,99,768 3,2t,665

---J8 
92268_ ----------?r2!, --

_____J9EZ3E!9_

1,50,000
6,05,72,384

19,84,955

4,00,000
9,t6,39,752

69,96,930
52,398
20,LB2

20,64,L54
9,00,00,000

13

4,98,92,903
1,03,500

26,235
1,060

t7,o97
L4,7O,g2O
2L,2O,OOO

300

2,lt,89,740
3,73,980

L4

15

$
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Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Limited
Notes on Financial Statements for the period ended on 3lst March 2019

PARTICULARS

Travelling Expenses
Meeting Expenses
Misc Expenses
Office Expenses
Professional Expenses
Advertisment Expenses
Business Communication Expenses
Consultancy Services Expenses
Printing & Stationery Exp
Repairs & Maintenance
Fule Expenses
Hospitality expenses
Inauguration Expenses
Legal Filing Fees
Interest on CGST Tax
Interest on SGST Tax
News paper Expenses
Postage Expenses
Staff Refreshment Expenses
Water Charges

As per our separate report of even date attached

No. 1O8959W

V. Tambulwadika

L5,48,792
L,23,9OO

83,503
63,105

l,44,OOO
48,23,560

94,749
3,48,29,437

79,528
49,499
1 1, 196

1,LL,745
40,000
3L,zLO
27,732
27,732
10,51 1

9,924
L,t4,498

6,150

6,18,019
32,248
54,545
5t,464

4,22,772
35,22,962

20,764
L,30,98,377

________!&E9it1_ _______]n8,2l,]E1_

Date: 
16 AU0 Z01g

M. No. 140333
Plaber Nashik ,."s#.

(Chief Executive
Officer)

hN*:;
(Chief Financial

Officer)

ffi\w '{"ri^,g",
(DrN- 07r?16s6)

(Company Secretary)
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NASHIK MUNICIPAL SMART CITY
DEVELOPMENTCORPORATIOI{ LIMITED NASHIK

NOTE 17 - NOTES TO ACCOUNTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BACKGROUND

NASHIK MUNICIPAL SMART CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED, NASHIK is incorporated
under the COMPANIES ACT, 2013 on 26tr, August 2016 with the main objective to plan design and to carry out
the projects envisaged under Smart City Proposal of Nashik Municipal Corporation under the Smart City Mission
of Government of India.

ACCOUNTING OF NMSCDCL

As per section 128(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the following Cumulative conditions are to be followed by the
Smart City, Nashik regarding maintenance of books of accounts of the Company.

A. Books of accounts of the company present a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company.
B. Books of accounts of the company are kept on accrual basis and according to double entry system of

accounting.
C. All books of accounts of the company are maintained in electronic mode.
D. As per section 128 (5) the company has an obligation to maintain books of accounts not less than eight

years immediately preceding the currertt y^ear. 
,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES t

A. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Acf 2013 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The
financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under tI're historical cost convention.

USE OF ESTIMATES.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires rnanagement to make
assumptions, critical judgments and estimates, which it beliefs are reasonable under the circumstances,
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities on the date of financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. Actual results could
differ from those estirnates. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the
period in which the results are known or materialize.

PROPERTY PLANT & EQUIPMENT -
Property Plant & Equipment (PPE) are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation f amorttzatron and
impafu'ment losses, if any. The cost of PPE comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and
rebates but inclusive of taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable fronl the tax authorities), any
directly attributable expenditure on rnaking the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses
ancl interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying PPE up to the clate the asqet-,1

for its intenclec'l use.

B.

C.
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D. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost. Depreciation on

Property Plant and Equipment has been provided on the WDV method as per the useful life prescribed in
Schedule III to the Companies Act,2013. (Refers Annexure-L) Whereas depreciation as per Income tax Act
charged as per section 32 of Income tax Act 1961. (Refer annexure- 2)

E. CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS:

Projects under development which are not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost comprising
direct cost, related incidental expenses. Cost of under development Project is accounted under capital

work in progress (CWIP). For calculation refers annexure-4 enclosed herewith and forming part of
Financial Statements. During financial year 2018-19, 3 projects is completed (Kalidas Kalamandir,
Mahatma Phule Kaladalan, Crematorium at Amardham) and it is capitalized with project grant on the

percentage basis as 50% cost of 3 project is capitalized with grant received from Governrnent of India
(GOD, 25o/o cost of 3 project is capitalized with grant received from Government of Maharashtra (GOM)
and25% cost of 3 project is capitalized with grant received from Nashik Municipal Corporation(NMc).

F. REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is recognized on accrual basis of accounting.

G. OTHER INCOME
Interest income is accounted onaccrual basis. NMSCDCL had received Insurance Deduction, Interest on IT
Refund of last financial year (FY 2017-1,8), Labor Cess @ 1%, Penalty Charges, Service chargesduring the
financialyear and it shall be consider as a revenue income in company's hand. The above income is
collected by Nashik Municipal Corporation for and on behalf of the company and they continue to hold
the said amount with thern as on the date of balance sheet. The amount receivable from Nashik Municipal
Corporation of this count is reflected under the heading Current Assets (Receivable from NMC).

H. GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the company will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

," -.:..,,REVENUE GRANTS
)j-j.;,..@ivedarecreditecltotheStatementofProfit&Losstotheextentofitseligible

utifi4ation as per applicable stipulation of the sanction of the grant. Government grants related to A & OE

Expehses are to be recognized on systematic basis in the profit and loss statement over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs which they are intendecl to compensate. There grants are

shown under the head "Direct Income" in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

CAPITAL GRANTS
In case of Capital Grants as received during the period under consideration are considered as Long term
liabilities. Further interest received on this grants is also credited to the respective grant since none of the
project under implernentation are completed.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as

short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The

undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is

recognized as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees. The company does_

any post-employment or other long-term employee benefits to employees.
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I. PROVISTONS
During the end of financial year company has made the various type of provision for future
payment like Salary payable, TDS payable, & Other Expenses payable at the end of financial year.

K. INIVESTMENTS
During the year company made investment in the form of fixed deposit of Rs 300,0O0O000/- (300 Cr.) to
IDBI Bank (Rs 30,00,00,000), Axis Bank (Rs 60,00,00,000), Corporation Bank (RS 30,00,00,00), HDFC Bank
(Rs 40,00,00,000) Kotak Mahindra Bank (Rs 30,00,00,000), RBL Bank (Rs 30,00,00,000), Union Bank (Rs

30,00,00,000), Yes Bank (Rs 50,00,00,000) for some banks in 6 months and some banks in up to 1 year.

L. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash comprises cash on hand and cash equivalents are demand deposits with banks. It also includes the
bank balance as or-r 31.t March 2019.

M. DEFERRED TAX-
Deferred Tax Liability/Asset resulting from timing difference between book profit and taxable profit is
accounted, to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

N. FIXED DEPOSITS INTEREST-
During the FY 201,8-19 company made fixed deposits in various banks of Rs 300 cr. (refer Annexure- 7)

Sarne as Interest of Rs 6,51,69523/ - is received on Fixed Deposits (Annexure- 6) All interest received
during the year should be capitalized in project grant on percentage basis.

O. NEW BANK ACCOUNT. STATE BANK OF INDIA
During FY2018-19, NMSCDCL has opened new project fund account in State Bank of India. (Account No-
381,62052816). But till the end of 31.'t March 2019 No any fur-rd is deposited in this account. The closing
balance is zero at the end of financial year and same is accounted in the books of accounts.

P. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION-
During FY 2018-19, The Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Ltd., has given the key
managerial remuneration of Rs. 25,00,51,8/-

CS-NMSCDCL
Typewritten Text
69



> ANNEXURES TO THE ACCOUNTS.

NASHIK MUNICIPAL SMART CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: I-t93090MH201 65GC285l 93

ANNEXUTRE.l
Fixed Assets Depreciation Calculation as per Companies Act 2013

to 3 l-Mur-20

Sr.
No.

Particullrs

Gross Block Depreciation Block Net Block

Opening
\\,Dv Addition Dclction

Closing
Balance

Accumulated
Depreciation

Current
Deprcriation

Totrl
Depreriation

(llosing

WD\
Opening

WDV

1

2

-)

4

5

6

Cornputer Software Licenc
Computers & Peripherals

Cupboard

Fumiture & Fixtures

Xerox Machine

Electrical Equipment

239290

528590

33435

t0 1265

I 5 5000

0

9s002

0

0

450 I 578

0

2065tt2

0

0

0

0

0

0

338292
528590

3343s

4602843

I 55000

2065tt2

2872

2853 I

2044

2663

2913

133162

15365 I

8127

97 t649
27528

3056s I

t61890
43 8968

l0l7t
9743t2

3044 t

30565 I

176403

89621
23264

362853 I

t24s59
t759461

2t 05 63

243272

31391

98602
I 52087

0

Grand Total I 057580 6665692 7723272 32 I 665 I 59976t 1921433 580 I 839 7359 t 5

ANNEXURE- 2

Depreciation as per Income Tar Act 1961

t-Apr-2018 to i l-Mar-2019

Pa rticulars
Opening

!vDV

Addition During the I'ear
Deletion Net IYDV Depri Rate Depreciation Closing WDV

Before 30/9/18 After l/10/18

I Computer Softrvare Licences I 8091i.0( 0.0t 99002.0( 0.0t 2 79915,00 40.00q, 92 I 7+,00 t 8776 1.0(

2 Cornputers & Peripherals I 79:i85.0( 0.0( 0.00 00( r79185 00 40.00'), I 5 I 754,00 22763t 0(

.) Cupboard 3 I 5 16.0( 0.0( 0.00 0.0( 315 r6.00 [0,000, 3 I 52.00 28364.0(

4 Furniture & Fixnues 96202,0( 41054 13.00 96 165.00 0.0( 459 7780.00 I ().00n, 454970.00 +H28I0.0(

5 Xerox Machine 143375.0i 0.0{ 0.00 0.0( I 4i375.00 l5.00oi 2 t 506.00 t2 I 869.0(

6 Electrical Equipment 0.0i 688 t 13.00 I 3 76999.00 0.00 2065 I 12 00 I 0.000 t 1i766 t,00 t927.15 I 00

Crand Total 8llll l.0t 5093526.00 I 572 I 66.00 0.00 7197103,00 86r217.00 6635886.00

Deferred Tax Calculation
ANNEXURE - 3

Depreciation as per Company Act- 2013

Depreciation as per Income Tax Act- l 96 I

Timing Diff. in Assets-

ry.x @26% (C*26oh) (Basic Tax Rate- 25Yo Plus 4o/o Edu Cess on Basic tax)

86 r217.00

Bal of Def-erred Tax Assets

Sr. No

Bal of Deffered Tax Assets
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ANNEXURE.4
Capital Work In Proeress(CWIP) During the Year

Sr,

No.
Projects Name Opening CWIP

Additoin During
Year

Total Cost of CWIP
Capitalized With

Crant
Closing CWIP

I

2

J

4

5

6

ClemotoriLrm at AmaLdham

Kalidas Kalamandir

Mahatma Phule Kaladalau( WIP)

NehaLu GaLden(WIP)

Srnart Road-C4(WtP)

Green Feild Proiect (WIP)

39.05.690.00

5,4 I .54.245.00

I .52,59.675.00

2.74. I 95.00

1,94,95,498.00

4,05,20,240,00

r,22,98,710,00

1,t0,54,287.00

2,77,33,783.00

9,06,500.00

2,34,01,188.00

9,46,7 4,485,00

2,75,58,38s,00

1, ,1,3 ,78 ,482 .00

2,71,33,783,00

9,06,s00.00

2,34,01,188.00

9,46,74,485.00

2,75,58,385.00

1,13,28,482.00

2,71,,33,783,00

9,06,s00.00

Total 7,35,93,905.00 11,14,09,018.00 18,50,02,923.00 I1,80,75,673.00 6,69,27,150.00

Note-

During FY 2017-18 & 2018-19, NMSCDCL has undertaken 6 projects, out of which 2 projects are completed during the FY 2018-19. The total Cost of 2 project

is Rs LL,80,75,573/- and it is capitalized with the grant in the ratio of 50:25:25. (GOl, GOM, NMC Respectively), Out of the total cost of Rs 5,90,37,8371- $\yo
of L1,,80,75,673l-) is capitalized with the grant received from G0l, Rs 2,95,18,918./-(25%of 77,80,15,6731-l is capitalized with the grant received from

G0M, and Rs 2,95,18,918/- l25o/o of L1,80,75,6731-l is capitalized with the grant received from NMC.

ANNEXURE - 5
A & OE GRANT UTILISATION FOR EXPENSES

Sr. No. Particulars of Crants GOI GONI Nltt' Bank lnterest Total Grant r\mt.
a

b

d

Openirrg Balarrce of A & OE Crants-1.4.2018

Addition During the Year-

Total Grants
Utilisation for A & OE Expenses- (Refer below Note

1.85.77.84e 00

6.00.00.000.00

1 .56.87.9 I 4.50

3.00.00.000.00

4.67,08,321.50

2.55. I 0.204 00 9l .67.1 10.00

8.09.7{.086.00

12,{6.77.1 l{.00
7,85,77.8{9.00

2.03.61.897 00

4,56,87,9 l{.s0
I .01.8 1.448.00

7,22,18,526.50

I .0 I .8 I .4.t8.00

91,67,1 10.00

9l .67.1 I 0.00

20,5(r,5 l,{00.00
{,9tt.92,903.00

Closing balance of A & OE Grants-3 L3.201 9 5.82.14.952 00 3.55.06.466 50 6.20.37.078 50 15,57.58,{97.00

N0te

s*;l
A
I

2

J

4

Total Expenses

Bank Interest Received

A & OE Grants tiom COI
A & OE Grants ti'om (iOM

A & OE Crants from NMC

el.67.I10.00
2.03.62.897.00

1.0 t.8 t.448 00

1.0 t.81,448.00

{,98,92,903.00
4.()7.25.791 rX)

of Erpenses

of Erpenses

of Exper.ses

Note-
Utilizati
stipulat
over th(

lncome'

were tr;
rece ive(

under ti

ion of Revenue Grants- Revenue Grants received are credited to the Statement of Profit & Loss

ion ofthe sanction ofthe grant. Government grants related to A & OE Expenses are to be recog

-, periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they are intended to compens.
" in the Statement of Profit & Loss. Ouring the year total expenses including depreciation cost c

rnsfer to the statement of profit & loss account to compensate the A & OE Expenses in the ratir
I from Govt of Maharashtra (GOM) and 25% grant received from Nashik Municipal Corporation
re head of "Other Current Liabilities" in Balance sheet.

to the extent of its eligible utilization as per applicable

;nized on systematic basis in the profit and loss statement
)te. There grants are shown under the head "Direct
rf tangible assets is Rs 4,98,92,903/- and same A & OE grant
c of 50% grant received from Govt of lndia (GOl), 25% grant
(NMC). Remaining balance of A & OE grant is carry forward

ANNEXURE.6

TDS ON IITEREST

1.16.17,119.0i) t t,62,742 00

i.[.2r9 00

J2,u,l5{.00

CS-NMSCDCL
Typewritten Text
71



ANNEXURE - 7
FIXED DEPOSITS

S.No Particulars Current Year

I

2
-)

4
5
6

8

Fixed Deposit's
lDBl Bank
Axis Banl< Ltd.
Corporation Bank Ltd.
HDFC Bank Ltd.
I(otak Mahindra
RBL Bank Ltd
Union Bank
Yes Bank Ltd

30.oo.oo.ooo.oo
60,oo.oo,ooo.oo
30,oo,oo,ooo.oo
40,o0.oo,ooo.oo
30,oo.oo.ooo.oo
30"oo.oo.ooo.00
30.oo.oo.ooo.oo
50.oo.oo.ooo.oo

Total 3,OO,OO,OO,OOO.OO

ANNEXURE - 8
SECURITY DEPOSIT

S.No Party Name Year Amount

1

2

Neev lnfrastructre Pvt. Ltd
R. K. Sawant

2017-18
2017-18

10,86.527.00
1,95,607.00

Total- (A) 12,82,134.OO

I

2
3

4
5

6

7

Neev Infrastrucfie Pvt. Ltd
Kalyani Enterprises
Rohit Pansare
Kalka Electricals
Skylark Construction Pvt. Ltd.
C4 Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.
R K. Sawant

2018-19
2018-19
2018-t9
2018-19
2018-r9
2018-19
2018-19

12,20,552.OO
5,73.472.OO
1,10, 136.00

47,172.OO
2,37,686.OO
6,25,890.00
4.84.197.OO

Total- (B) 32,99,105.00

Total Amount (A+B) 45,81,239.00
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ANNEXURE
EMD

9

S.No Party Name Year Amount
L EMD 20L7-La 25,OO,446.OO

Tota!- (A) 25,00,446.OO

L

2

3

C. R. Sagdeo & Co.
Sangam Renewables Pvt. Ltd.
Trigyn Technologies Ltd.

201_8-19
20LA-L9
20La-L9

5,OOO.OO

25,OO,OOO.OO

24,L7,OOO.OO

Total- (B) 49,22,OOO.OO

Total- (A+B) 74,22,446.OO

Note- During the last two years, Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Ltd has

received the EMD of Rs74,22,446f , and it is booked under Other Current Liability under Balance Sheet

as on 3L't March 2019.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS.

FIXED ASSSTS.

. As per Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013, Depreciation calculated on Fixed Assets at the end of
financial Year as per Companies Act 2013 on the basis of Useful life of Assets. (Refer Annexure 1)

o As per Section 32 of Income Tax Acf 1961, Depreciation is calculated on Block of Assets at the end of
Financial Year. (Refer Annexure 2)

. Deferred Tax (Timing Difference) is calculated as per AS - 22. (Refer Annexure 3)

CURRENT ASSETS

A. TRADE RECEIVABLES (SUNDRY DEBTORS).
During FY 2018-19, NMSCDCL has charge penalty to following parties-
l. Kalika Electricals
2. Kalyani Enterprises
3. Neev Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.
4. R. K. Sawant
5. Rohit Pansare

6. Skaylark Construction
As per GST law NMSCDCL is liable to pay GST on penalty, and it is recovered from above parties.

So Debtors amount is outstanding as on 3l't March 2019, hence it is shown as a receivable under Sundry
Debtors in Balance sheet.

B. CASH IN HAND.
NMSCDCL has closing Balance of Cash Rs.10,000/- at the end of Financial Year.
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C. BANK ACCOUNTS-

NMSCDCL l-ras rnaintainecl Three Accounts-

Sr.
No.

Bank Name Closing Balance as

Books
Closing Balance as

Bank
1 Yes Bank Proiect A/c-200 75\,65,70,993.77 /- 751,65,70,993.77 /
) Yes Bank Nidhi A/c-741 58,03,826.75/- 58,03,826.15/-
3 State Bank of India (New Account) o/-

Bank Reconciliation is done on the basis of comparing the entries in the Records and with the bank

statement for the financial year 2018-19. It provides an important check on the accuracy of the

Bank entries.

D. ADVANCETAX.

NMSCDCL has paid Advance Tax of Rs. 4,00,000/- during the year

E. TAX DEDUCTION AT SOURCE (TDS).

Company having a TDS (Tax Deduction at Source) for the year of Rs 32,L4,154f -, out of which tax
liability is Rs. 11,53,010/- so balance TDS amount of Rs. 20641541- is shown under current asset in
Balance sheet, it is receivable from lncome Tax department.

F. WORK IN PROGRESS-

During the year 2017-18 & 201,8-1,9, NMSCDCL has undertaken 6 Projects out of which 2 projects is

completed during FY 2018-19. (Cremotorium at Amardham, Kalidas kalamandir) and 4 projects

are under work in progress till the end of Financial Year 2018 - 19 and there expenses are

capitalized for the respective project under Work In Progress. Projects are as follows -
1,. Kalidas Kalamandir - Rs.9,46,7 4,484.84 / - (Completed)

2. Cremotorium at AmardhamRs. 2,34,01,,1,88/- (Completed)

3. Mahatma Phule Kaladalan (WIP) -Rs.2,75,58,385f -

4. Nehru Garden (WIP) - Rs.1,13,28,482/-

5. Smart Road(Ashok Stambh to Trimbak Naka(WIP)- Rs.2,71,,33,783f

6. Green Field Project (WIP)- 9,06,500/ -

LONG TERM LIABILITY

A. SHARE CAPITAL -

Sr. No. Particulars/Sharehol ders Amount
1 GoveLnment of Maharashtra 2,50,000/-
2 Nashik Municipal Corporation 2,50,000/ -

3
Reserves and Surplus
(Including Current year Profit)

32,54,686/-

, B. GOVERNMENT GRANT
NMSCDCL have been received grants form Govt. of India, Govt. of Maharashtra, and llshik
Municipal Corporation (NMC) during the year as a Project Grant as well as

, -. ' Grants.
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As per Guidelines issued by Smart Cities, we classified grants as -
93o/o as a project grant,
So/u as a Revenue grants and

2% as Admin grant.

Accounting for Admin Grant is not done since details thereof have not been received frorn the
Government.

Under Grants Accounting, Grants have been classified as a Project grant and Revenue (A&OE)
Grant. For accounting purpose, we are considering the all grants received as 98% and 2% admin
grant not received respective authority.
Closing Balances of Grant are as follows-

CAPITAL GRANT

REVENUE GRANTS

Sr.
No.

Grants From
Opening
Balance

Grant
Received
in 20L8-L9

Total
Revenue

Gant

Utilized
during the

vear
Closing Bal.

1 Grants From GOI- 1,,85,77,849/ - 6,00,00,000/- 7,85,77,819/- 2,03,62,897 /- 5,82,1.4,952/ -

2 Grants Fronr COM- 1,56,87,974/ - 3,00,00,000/- 1,56,87,91,1/ - 7,07,81,1,18/ - 3,55,06,466.50/-

J Grants From NMC- 4,67,08,322/- 2,55,10,20J/ - 7,22,\8,526/ - 7,07,81,418/ - 6,20,37,078.5t)/ -

SHORT TERM LIABILITIES.

1. PROVISIONS- NMSCDCL having a provision of Rs. 61,70,116/- for the FY 2018-19. it includes
Employee benefits payable (Salary & Other Deduction), TDS of contractors and professional fees
payables, GST Payable, Audit fees and Accounting fees Payable and provision for work in progress. for
Provision of work in progress refer below table. Provision is made for the work done at Nehru Garden and

Smart Road. Amount of CWIP up to 3 1-03-2019 is calculated as per number of days worked at respective
sites.

Grant
Received in

2018-L9

74,79,64,789 /-

e7,75,47,229/ - 97,75,11,229/- 2,95,18,91,8/ -
Grants

From GOM-

99,77,46,153/ - 2,95,18,9L8/ -
Grants

From NMC-
7,47,22,35,949 / - 1,51,27,78,677 /-

RK IN PROGRESS WORKING.2Ol8.I9

Total Bill Amt
T'otal Days up

J 1.1.2019

Total Period
Between 2 Bill

17,00,291.00I9-0t-20t9

l 5-05-20 r 9I 9-03-20 t 9

Grants
From GOI-

Neharu Garden
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2. TRADE PAYABLE-
NMSCDCL have trade payable of Rs. 249845/- at the end of
creditors for expenses and creditors for assets.

REVENUE INCOME-

1. REVENUE INCOME.

financial year. It includes

a. NMSCDCL has received the Grants from GOI, GOM and NMC. Capital grants are used for the
developrnent of Projects and A &OE Grants for expenses in ratio of 93'/" & 5% as per smart city
mission document.

b. Total expenses during the year of NMSCDCL is Rs 4,98,92,903f -excluding income tax expenses.
c. Amount of Rs.4,98,92,903/- Is adjusted from A & OE Grant and Interest received during the year on A

& OE Grants. For revenue expenses 1st utilized bank interest and balance amount utilized form A &
OE Grants in the ratio of 50:25:25 of GOI, GOM & NMC respectively. (refer Annexure- 5)

d. NMSCDCL has received service charges for solar project of Rs. 21200001- from Sangam Renewable
Pvt. Ltd. lt is considered as income of the NMSCDCL.

All expenses of the NMSCDCL are accounted as per guideline of accounting policies and accounting rules.

For C. R. SAGDEO & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

SANJEEVAN V. TAMBULW.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nashik Municipal Smart City Development Corporation Ltd.

(DrN- 026708ee)
(Chairman)

*r.Urrm:x
(Chief Executive Officer)

(Independent Director)

M. NO.:140333

PLACE: NASHIK
DATE: 16 AUO 2O1g

(Chief Financial Officer)

NIi. Tushar Pagar
(DrN- 07121.656)

(Company Secretary)
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